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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9544 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9544

Fax:603-271-4332 TOD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

May 16. 2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health, to
enter into an amendment to an existing contract with JSI Research & Training Institute, inc.
(VC#161611), Bow, New Hampshire for the implementation of a facilitating organization to oversee
New Hampshire's Student Assistance Programs, by exercising a renewal option by increasing the
price limitation by $5,900,000 from $3,300,000 to $9,200,000 and by extending the completion date
from June 30, 2023 to June 30, 2025, effective July 1, 2023 upon Governor and Council approval.
50% Other Funds, 50% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on July 27. 2022, item #9 and
most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on December 7, 2022, item #8.

Funds are anticipated to be available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2024
and 2025, with the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances
between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-92-920510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL,
GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

increased

(Decreased
) Amount

Revised

Budget

2023 074/5000589

Grants for

Pub Asst &

Relief

92058502

$1,200,000 $0 $1,200,000

2024 074/5000589

Grants for

Pub Asst 8t

Relief

92058502

$0 $1,475,000 $1,475,000

2025 074/5000589

Grants for

Pub Asst &

Relief

92058502

$0 $1,475,000 $1,475,000

Subtotaf $1,200,000 $2,950,000 $4,150,000
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05-95—94-940010-24650000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL, NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL.ARPA
DHHS FISCAL RECOVER FUNDS (100% Federal Funds)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased
) Amount

Revised

Budget

2023 074/5000589

Grants for

Pub Asst &

.  Relief

O0FRF6O2

PH9510A'

$2,100,000 $0 $2,100,000

Subtotal $2,100,000 $0 $2,100,000

05-95-92-920510-33800000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS. HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Budget

increased

(Decrease
d) Amount

Revised

Budget

2024 074/5000589

Grants for

Public Asst

and Relief

92057502

$0 $1,475,000 $1,475,000

2025 074/500589

Grants for

Public Asst

and Relief

92057502

$0 $1,475,000 $1,475,000

Subtotal $0 $2,050,000 $2,950,000

Contract

Total

$3,300,000 $5,900,000 $9,200,000

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to continue to operate as the Facilitating Organization by
developing and supporting an infrastructure and provide program support to Student Assistance
Programs across the State. The Facilitating Organization will ensure financial, operational,
technical assistance and training to support Student Assistance Programs including
subcontracting with school districts or other organizations to implement SAPs.

The Department's goal is to create a statewide, geographically diverse Student Assistance
Program network by contracting with an organization that can provide technical assistance and
best practice on how to effectively deliver and expand Student Assistance Program services.

The Contractor will contlmie to contract with subawardees chosen through a competitive
RFP process facilitated by the Contractor and monitored closely by the Department. Currently 21
student assistance program and affiliated professional are subcontracted. The Contractor will
continue to ensure each subawardee will provide services, in fidelity with the Project SUCCESS
model, to New Hampshire youth in high need communities with the goal of preventing and
reducing underage drinking, high risk drinking, and the use of non-medical prescription drugs,
including opioids and illicit drug use.
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Services provided by the subawardees will Include: alcohol arid other drug screenings;
individual support sessions; group support sessions; and referrals to drug and alcohol treatment
providers when indicated by the screening. Additionally, each subawardee will provide students
and parents with targeted drug and alcohol education to improve understanding of risks
associated with the non-medical use of prescription drugs, underage alcohol and other drug use,
and the developmental milestones and brain development of adolescents. The Contractor will
incorporate community level media strategies to conduct outreach and marketing for the Student
Assistance Programs, thus allowing the subawardees to focus on delivery of sen/ices.

Student Assistance Programs, statewide, will continue to work collaboratively with the
Contractor and the Department to improye the quality of services delivered to students and, to
collect data for the purposes of data-driven decision making for school-based prevention
programming.

The Department will monitor services by:

•  Ensuring a minimum of 20 schools are providing SAP services by
September 1, 2023 and 25 schools are providing SAP services by September 1,
2024

•  Ensuring 95% of SAPs fully meet the fidelity of Project SUCCESS by June 30,2023
and 2024.

•  Ensuring 80% of SAP counselors are trained in Project SUCCESS by June 30,
2024

•  Ensuring 95% of sub-awarded SAPs report being satisfied with the quality of
support provided, by the facilitating organization.

Approximately 18.000 individuals will be served annually.

As referenced in Exhibit A. Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions, of the original
agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to five (5) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of sen/ices, available funding, agreement of the parties and
Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising Its option to renew services for two
(2) of the five (5) years available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, students may not receive the
support and substance misuse prevention education needed during critical developmental years.
Lack of support services could result in higher prevalence rates of underage drinking, drug use.
misuse and abuse of prescription medication, and an escalation in adverse childhood
experiences.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number # CFDA 93.959.

In the event that the Federal Funds or Other Funds become no longer available, additional
General Funds will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Weaver

Interim Commissioner

Tlie Department of Health and Human Services'Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citisens to achieve health and independence.
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Fiscal Organization for Student Assistance Program contract is by and between
the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and
JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on July 27, 2022, (Item #9^ as amended on December 7, 2022, (Item #8). the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based, upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17, and Exhibit A, Paragraph 1.1, the
Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and
Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these sen/ices; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2025

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$9,200,000

3. Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 1, to read:

1. This Agreement is funded by:

'  1.1. 23% Federal Funds from the American Rescue Plan Act, ARPA Fiscal Recovery Funds,
CFDA 93.959

1.2. 32% Federal Funds from Substance Abuse Mental Health Administration Services,
Substance Abuse Prevention, Treatment, Recovery Block Grant

1.3. 45% Other funds (Governor's Commission).

4. Modify Exhibit C Payment Terms, Section 3 to read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
■ fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line items, as
specified in Exhibits C-1, Budget through C-3 Amendment #2, Budget.

5. Add Exhibit C-2 Amendment #2, Budget, which is attached hereto and.incorporated by reference
herein.

6. Add Exhibit C-3 Amendment #2, Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

f  D8

JSI Research and Training Institute. Inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials

RFP-2023-BDAS-02-FACIL-01:A02 Page 1 of 3 Datei^i®/^^
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2023, upon Governor and Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

5/23/2023

Date

OocuSiontd by;

6PCPa<B84cei«ai.

Name: ^atja s. fox
Title: Director

5/18/2023

Date

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.C—OocuSlgntd by:
_(.tasoca^EAagadia.

Name: Katherine Robert

Title: ^
D^rector

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

RFP-2023-BDAS-02-FACIL-01 -02

A.S-1.2

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

DoeuSiflned by:

5/24/2023 (5^«vup
^ i.i7«7e>4frM04>400,T :

Date Name: Robyn cuanno

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: {date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

JSl Research and Training Institute, Inc. A-S-1.2

RFP-2023-BDAS-02-FACIL-01 -02 Page 3 of 3
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RFP.2023-BDAS-02-FACIL-01-A02

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Complete one budget form for each budget period.

Contractor Name: JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

Budget Request for: Fiscal Organization for Student Assistance Program

Budget Period 7/1/2023 - 6/30/2024

Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable) 3.06%

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages $250,196

2." Fringe Benefits $117,342

3. Consultants $20,000

4. Equipment $0

5.(a) Supplies - Educational $0

5.(b1 Supplies - Lab $0

5.(c1 Supplies - Pharmacv $0

5.(d) Supplies - Medical $0

5.(e1 Supplies Office $0

6. Travel $983

7. Software $0

8. (a) Other - Marketinq/Communications. $0

8. (b) Other - Education and Training
8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)

Other (please specify) $23,850
Other (please specify)
O

$0

ther (please specify) $0
Other (please specify) $0

9. Subreciplent Contracts $2,450,000

Total Direct Costs $2,862,371

Total Indirect costs $87,629

"TOTRC $2,960,000

Contractor Initial

Date
5/18/2023
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RFP-2023-BDAS-02.FACIL-01-A02

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Complete one budpet form for each budget period.

Contractor Name: JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

Budget Request for: Fiscal Organization for Student Assistance Program

Budget Period 7/1/2024 - 6/30/2025

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)3.06%

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

1. Salarv& Wages $2S7,700

2. Fringe Benefits $120,861

3. Consultants $1,S00

4. Equipment $0

S.fa^ Supplies - Educational $0

5.fb^ Supplies-Lab $0

Sic) Supplies - Pharmacy $0

Sid) Supplies - Medical $0

Sie) Supplies Office $0

6. Travel $1,000

7. Software $0

8. (a) Other - Marketing/Communications $0

8. (b) Other - Education and Training
8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)

Other (please specify) $1,000

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $2,486,751

Total Direct Costs $2,868,812

I otal Indirect Costs $81,188

TOTAL $2,950,000

Contractor Initial

Date
5/18/2023
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secrctar>' of Stale of the State ofNew Hampshire, do hereby certify that JSI RESEARCH & TRAINING

INSTITUTE, INC. is a Massachusetts Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on Februaiy 17,

2016. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good

standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 739507

Certificate Number: 0006112344

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 9th day of Februao' A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Sccrctar\' of Slate
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I, Margaret M. Crotty, of JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. hereby certify that:

1. I am a duly elected President & CEO of JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called
and held on the 2"^ of May, 2023, at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and
voting.

VOTED: That Katie Robert as Director of JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc., d/b/a Community Health
Institute is duly authorized on behalf of JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. toenter into contracts or
agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or
modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of
the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains
valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood
that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above

'  currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the
extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts
with the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: May 3, 2023
Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Margaret M. Crotty
Title: President & CEO

Rev. 03/24/20
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ACORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYVY)

10/26/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED" BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or t>e endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

AHT insurance, A Balcfwin Risk Partner
458 South Ave
V\/hitman MA 02382

License#: C/U»0658748

COWTACT
NAME;

fuc'uf, Frtv 800-648-4807 T/W. No): 781 -447-7230
k-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURERtS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC#

INSURER A Federal Insurance Company 20281

insured J0HNSNCK)1

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.
44 Famsworth Street

Boston MA 02210-1206

INSURER B

INSURER C

INSURER 0

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 243128448 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE r?w!irwi POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
IMMIDD/YYYYI

POUCY EXP
(MM/DD/YYYY1 LIMITS

A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LUBILfTY

)E 1 X 1 OCCUR
35873320 9/9/2022 9/9/2023 EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000 .

CLAIMS-MAC PREMISES fEa occurrence) $1,000,000

MED EXP (Any one person) S 10,000

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $1,000,000

GENt AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $2,000,000

POUCY1 1 Sect LAJ "-OC
OTHER;

PRODUCTS ■ COMP/OP AGG s

s

A 1 AUTOMOBILE UABtLITY 73546634 9/9/2022 9/9/2023
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
lEa accident)

$1,000,000

ANY AUTO

:keduleo I
ITOS
)N-OWNEO

ITOS ONLY *

BODILY INJURY (Per person) $1,000,000

OWNED !
AUTOS ONLY 1
HIRED - 1
AUTOS ONLY 1

X SC
M

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $1,000,000

X X NC
AL

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accident)

$1,000,000 .

$

A X UMBRELLA LlAB

EXCESS LlAB

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

79861066 9/9/2022 9/9/2023 EACH OCCURRENCE $20,000,000

AGGREGATE $20,000,000

1 DED 1 1 RETENTIONS $

A WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY y / ̂
ANVPROPRJETOrVPARTfCWEXECUnVE | 1
0FFICER/MEM8EREXCLUDE0?
(MandatofylnNH) . " '
# yes. descrba under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS bsldw

N/A

71733182 9/9/2022 9/9/2023
y  1 PER OTH-
^  1 STATUTE ER

E.L EACH ACCIDENT $

E.L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $1,000,000

E.L DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT $1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS 1 LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Additional Ramarks Schadula, may b« atuchad K mort apact Is rtquirsd)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25(2016/03)

® 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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JSI Research and Training Institute Inc.

Mission Statement

JSI Research and Training Institute was incorporated in 1987 as a 501©3 non-profit
organizadon in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. Our mission is to alleviate public
health problems both in the United States and in developing countries around the world •
through applied research, technical assistance and training. JSI maintains offices in Boston,
Massachusetts; Washington, D.C.; Denver, Colorado and Bow, New Hampshire; as well as
seven overseas offices in developing nadons. Since its incepdon, JSI has successfully
completed more than 400 contracts in the health and human ser\dce fields.
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Community Health Institute

Mission Statement

The Community Health Institute's mission is to support and strengthen New Hampshire's
health care system by providing coordinated information dissemination and technical
assistance resources to health care providers, managers, planners, and policy makers,
statewide. Our success translates into improved access to qualit)' health and social services
for all New Hampshire residents.
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Consolidated Financial Statements and

Report of Independent Certified Public
Accountants and Reports in
Compliance with Uniform Guidance

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and
Affiliates

September 30, 2021
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Grant Thornton

0IUMTTHORNTON LL» REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

rsSistaSnel. 13^ Floor

Boston, MA 02109

D ♦1 617 723 7900

F  ♦1617 723 3640

Board of Directors

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

Report on the financial statements

Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of JSI Research and Training
Institute, Inc. (a nonprofit organization) and affiliates (the 'Entity'), which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as of Septeml>er 30, 2021, and the
related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for
the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in
all material respects, the financial position of the Entity as of September 30, 2021, and.
the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with

auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (US GAAS)
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States {Govemment
Auditing Standards). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are required to be independent of the Entity and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to
our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted In the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to
evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about the Entity's ability to continue as a going concern for
one year after the date the financial statements are available to be issued.

GT.COM Greni TDomton LLP is tha U.S. member Arm of Grant Thornton IntamatkMial Ltd (GT(L). GTIL and each of Its member flims
are separate legal entities end are not a wortdxide partnership. "
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@ Grant Thornton

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about \whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement. whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS and
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on
the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS and Government Auditing
Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit.

*  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

♦  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Entity's internal
control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluate the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

♦  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in
the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Entity's ability to continue as
a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit
findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Supplementary information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of fonning an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements as a whole. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the
consolidated financial statements. Such supplementary information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial
.statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures.
These additional procedures included comparing and reconciling such information
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directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements

themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with US GMS. In our
opinion, the accompanying supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other reporting required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report
dated June 24, 2022 on our consideration of the Entity's intemal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and comjaliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Entity's internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Entity's intemal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

Boston, Massachusetts
June 24, 2022
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JSl Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

September 30, 2021

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables for program work

Field advances • program

Employee advances

Inventory

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Property and equipment, net

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and payroll withholdings

Accrued vacation

Advances for program work

Total current liabilities

Net assets

Without donor restrictions

V\fith donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

$  96.415.811

44,323,084

166,700

96,355

85,451,482

2,356,305

228,809,737

2,722,747

494,706

$ 232,027,190

$  77.042,213

2,128,990

86,189,016

165,360,219

66,118,555

548,416

66,666,971

$ 232,027,190

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of this consolidated financial statement.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year ended September 30, 2021

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Support and revenue:

Public support:

Global Fund

Government grants and contracts:
U.S. Government

Commonwealth of Massachusetts

Other grants and contracts
Program income

Contributions

Net assets reieased from restriction

Gain on forgiveness of debt

in-kind project contributions

Other income

Interest income

Total support and revenue

Expenses:

Program services:

internationai programs

Domestic programs

Totai program services

Supporting services:

Management and general
Fundraising

Total supporting services

Other e}g>enses:

Unallowable costs

Totai expenses

Change in net assets without donor restrictions

NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Contributions, net of net asset releases of $78,524

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Net assets at beginning of year

Net assets at end of year

S 424,622,326

149,829,898

7,341,579

69,804,737

96,124

261,599

78,524

1,074,400

1,834,514

1,999

97,932

655,043,632

580,625,338

29,137,111

609,762,449

34,127,773

1.080,428

35.208,201

345,188

645,315,838

9,727,794

229,766

9,957,560

56,709,411

$  66,666,971

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated financial statement.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Year ended September 30, 2021

Program Services Supporting Services

International

Programs

Domestic

Programs Total

Management

and General Fundralsing Total

Commodities $  374.776,813 $ $  374,776.813 $ $ $  374,776,813

Freight costs 34.169.444 - 34,169,444 •
34,169,444

Salaries 28.610,134 14,840,513 43,450,647 10,036,241 893,143 54,380,031

Consultants 16,418,084 7,634,972 24,053,056 2,125,852 30,687 26,209,595

Cooperating national salaries 38.458,259 273,800 38,732,059 395,260 - 39,127,319

Travel 3,609,187 187,076 3,796,263 39,083 • 3,835,346

Allowance and training 3,801,160 132,510 3,933,670. 531,959 - 4,465,629

Subg rants 18,307,467 700,914 19,008,381 50,553 42,873 19,101.807

Subcontracts 25,529,700 3,313,466 28,843,166 - - 28,843,166

Equipment, material and supplies 3.024,350 129,075 3,153,425 78,439 1,986 3,233,850

Other costs 30,461,762 1,924,785 32,386,547 20.054,427 111,739 52,552,713

Information technology 950 - 950 469,309 - 470,259

Non-commodity 1,606,244 - 1,606.244 - - 1,606,244

Quality assurance 17,270 - 17,270 - - 17,270

In-kind project expenses 1,834,514 - 1,834,514 • -
1,834,514

Depreciation - - - 346,650 - 346,650

Total expense $  580,625,338 $  29,137,111 $ 609,762,449 $  34,127,773 $  1,080,428 $ 644,970,650

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated financial statement.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended September 30, 2021

Cash flows from operating activities;

Change in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change In net assets to net cash
provided by operating activities;

Gain on forgiveness of debt

Loss on disposal of property and equipment

Depreciation

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Increase in receivables for program work

Decrease in field advances - program

Increase in employee advances

Increase in prepaid expenses

Increase in other assets

Increase in inventory

Decrease in accounts payable and payroll withholdings

Decrease in accrued vacation

Increase in advances for program work

Net cash provided by operating activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

$  9,957,560

{1,074,400)

87,708

346.650

■  (14,705,893)

3,691,792

(92,113)

(348,177)

(229,776)

(8,230,710)

(10,600,522)

(84,561)

36,330,138

15,047,696

15,047,696

81,368,115

$  96,415,811

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated financial statement.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Septeniber 30, 2021

NOTE A - ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. (the "Organization") was incorporated in the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts on April 11,1979. JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. provides education and research
primarily to non-profit health and human service agencies both in the United States and abroad. Current
funding is principally from the United States Agency for International Development ("AID") and the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

JSI Research and Training Institute. Inc. is the sole member of World Education, Inc. and The Partnership
for Supply Chain Management, Inc. ("Affiliates"). JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. is accorded with
such powers as are typical for a sole member including the power of appointment and removal of the
Affiliates' board of trustees, the right to approve amendments to the bylaws and certificate of incorporation,
and the right to approve any merger, consolidation, dissolution or transfer of substantial assets of Affiliates.

World Education, Inc. was founded in 1951 and incorporated in the state of New Jersey. Working in
partnership with community, national, and international agencies in Asia, Africa, and the United States, it
provides professional assistance In the design and implementation of non-formal adult education programs.
These programs integrate functional education with relevant problem-solving aspects of individual growth
and national development such as health, nutrition, family planning, childcare, refugee education,
agricultural practices, literacy, and income generation. World Education, Inc's financial data is consolidated
utilizing its fiscal year-end financial statements, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021.

The Partnership for Supply Chain Management ("PfSCM") was incorporated on February 14, 2005, under
the laws of Massachusetts. PfSCM began operations on October 1, 2005 as a non-profit organization
established by JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Management Sciences for Health, Inc. On
October 11, 2018, Management Sciences for Health, Inc. discontinued their relationship with PfSCM and
JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. became the sole member of PfSCM.

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and its affiliates are tax exempt organizations under 501(c)(3) of
the Internal Revenue Code ("IRC") and file separate unconsolidated tax returns.

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SlGNIFtCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. as
well as World Education, Inc. and PfSCM, its affiliates (collectively referred to as the Organization).
Significant intra-entity accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Basis of Accounting

The consolidated financial, statements of the Organization have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis
of accounting, and include the accounts of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and its affiliates in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP). Net
assets, revenues, and expenses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed
restrictions. Accordingly, the net assets of the Organization and the changes thereof are classified arid
reported as follows;

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions - Net assets that are not subject to donor-Imposed restrictions.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions - Contributions, grants, and income whose use by the Organization
has been limited by donors or grantors to a specific time period or purpose.

10
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2021

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly,
actual results may differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organization considers all monies in banks and highly liquid investments with maturity dates of three
months or less to be cash equivalents. The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair
value because of the short maturities of those financial instruments. Total cash held in foreign accounts
was $3,461,909 at September 30, 2021.

■Property and Equipment

Property and equipment owned by the organization are reported on the basis of cost less accumulated
depreciation. Acquisitions of property and equipmerit in excess of $5,000 are capitalized. Depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method calculated to extinguish the book value of the respective assets
over their estimated useful lives (5-7 years) of the related assets. Property and equipment purchased with
grant funds where ownership rests with the donor is expensed at the time of purchase and is returned to
the donor or disposed of in accordance with the terms of the grant and/or donor permissions at the
conclusion of the grant period.

Recent Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In fiscal year 2021, the Organization adopted ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers,
which outlines a single cprnprehensive revenue model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising
from contracts with customers. The guidance supersedes most current revenue recognition guidance,
including industry-specific guidance, and ensures that entities appropriately reflect the consideration to
which they expect to be entitled in exchange for goods and services, by allocating transaction price to
identified performance obligations, and recognizing that revenue as performance obligations are satisfied.
The Organization applied the standard .using the modified retrospective transition method resulting in a
$2,275,600 reduction of net assets without restrictions as of the adoption date (October 1; 2020).

As part of the adoption of the ASU, the Organization elected to use the following transition practical
expedients; (i) completed contracts that begin and end in the same annual reporting period have not been
restated; (ii) the Organization used the known transaction price for completed contracts; (iii) to exclude
disclosures of transaction prices allocated to remaining performance obligations when the Organization
expects to recognize such revenue for all periods prior to the date of initial application of the ASU; and (iv)
the company has reflected the aggregate of all contract modifications that occurred prior to the date of initial
application when identifying the satisfied and unsatisfied performance obligations, determining the
transaction price, and allocating the transaction price.

Revenue Recognition

Grants and Contacts

The majority of the Organization's revenues are derived from contracts, cooperative agreements, and
grants with The Global Fund to Fight AIDS Tuberculosis and Malaria (the Global Fund), and U.S.
government agencies, primarily USAID and the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

The Organization recognizes revenue from external organizations for services provided under exchange
and non-exchange grants and contracts. Unconditional grants, contracts, and contributions are recognized
as revenue in the period received in the appropriate net asset category, based on the existence or absence

11
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JSI Research and Training institute, Inc. and Affiliates

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2021

of donor imposed restrictions. If donor imposed restrictions are present, the associated revenue is reported
as an increase In net assets with donor restrictions and are reclassified to net assets without donor
restrictions when the restrictions are met. Grants and contracts revenues whose restrictions are met in the
same reporting period are reported as net assets without donor restriction.

Revenues from non-exchange transactions may be subject to conditions in the form of both a barrier to
entitlement and a refund of amounts paid {and a release from obligation to make future payments). The
Organization recognizes revenue earned from conditional non-exchange grants and contracts as these
conditions are satisfied. At September 30, 2021. the Organization had $247,832,020 of conditional grants
and contracts not recognized as revenue in the statements of activities.

Revenues from exchange transactions are recognized as the Organization satisfies performance
obligations, which In some cases, mirrors the timing of when related costs are incurred. In the case of the
procurement and delivery of commodities revenues are recognized upon receipt by the customer. As of
September 30, 2021, the Organization has $67,626,102 of deferred revenue related to exchange
transactions which will be recognized as revenue upon completion of delivery of commodities and receipt
by the customer. This deferred revenue in included within advances for program work in the accompanying
statement of financial position.

Donated Materials and Services

Donated materials and services are recorded as in-kind project contributions at their estimated fair market
value as of the date of receipt and as an expense In the accompanying consolidated statements of activities.
Donated services are recognized if the services received create or enhance non-financial assets or require
specialized skills that are provided by individuals possessing those skills and would typically need to be
purchased if not provided by donation.

, Income Taxes

The Organization is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the IRC and is not a private
foundation as described in Section 509. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes Is included in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

The Organization has evaluated its tax positions and believes that there would be no material changes to
the results of its operations or financial position as a result of an audit by the applicable taxing authorities,
federal or state. The Organization has filed all of its known and required returns in a timely manner including
as permitted allowed extensions.

JSI Research and Training Institute. Inc., World Education, Inc. and PfSCM file separate unconsolidated
tax returns. JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and PfSCM file tax returns based on a September 30
year end and World Education, Inc. files its tax return based on a June 30 year end.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the consolidated statements of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among
the programs and supporting services benefited. Each functional classification includes all expenses related
to the underlying operations by natural classification. Natural expenses attributable to more than one
functional expense category are allocated using a variety of cost allocation techniques.

12
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JSI Research and Training Institute, inc. and Affiliates

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2021

Foreign Currency Transactions

Expenses of international operations are measured generally using local currency. Expenses are translated
to USD using the first in, first out method of exchange based on the bank rate assigned at transfer. As a
result, foreign currency transaction gains and losses are negligible and are included as direct program
expenses.

Receivables for Program Work

Receivables for program work are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding
balances. Management provides for probable uncollectable amounts through a provision for bad debt
expense and an adjustment to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of the current status of
individual accounts. Balances that are still outstanding-after management has used reasonable collection
efforts are written off through a charge, to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The
allowance for doubtful accounts at September 30, 2021 was $0. Included in receivables for program work
is $34,790,746 of amounts billed and $9,532,337 of amounts unbilled.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases, which requires a lessee to recognize a right-ofr
use asset and lease liability, initially measured at the present value of the lease payments, in Its balance
sheet/statement of financial position. The guidance also expands the required quantitative and qualitative
disclosures surrounding leases. The ASU is effective for fiscal year 2023 for the Organization. The
Organization Is evaluating the impact of the new guidance on its consolidated financial statements.

NOTE C - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Organization maintains demand deposits and money market funds at financial institutions. At times,
certain balances held in these accounts may not be fully guaranteed by the United States government. The
uninsured portions of cash and money market accounts are backed solely by the assets of the financial
institution. Therefore, the failure of a financial institution could result in a financial loss to the Organization.
However, the Organization has not experienced losses on these accounts in the past and management
believes the risk of loss, if any, to be minimal.

NOTE D - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Property and equipment and accumulated depreciation account balances as of September 30, 2021:

Accumulated

Cost Depreciation Net

Furniture and equipment

Leasehold improvements

$  592.816 $  583,779 $ 9,037

3,380,365 666,655 2,713,710

$  3,973.-181 $  1,250,434 $ 2,722,747

Depreciation expense was $346,650 for the year ended September 30, 2021.
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JSi Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

NOTES TO consolidated FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2021

NOTE E - ADVANCES FOR PROGRAM WORK

Advances for program work consist of the following at September 30, 2021:

Other - non-governmental:
Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation $. 19,139,937

Various donors . 17,133,997
Global Fund 48,415,977

Doris Duke Charitable Foundation 1,499,105

$  86,189,016

Advances for program work represent refundable advances of cash related from non-governmental
organizations. They are reported as advances because there is typically a barrier placed by the granting
organization,'as well as a right of return if the funds are not used in accordance with the terms of the
arrangement with the funding organization. Once the barriers are overcome and there is no longer a right
of retum, revenue is recognized.

NOTE F-DEBT

Citizens Bank

World Education, Inc. has a revolving line of credit with a bank with a borrowing limit of up to $500,000. The
revolving line of credit was renewed on August 17, 2021. The loan is payable on demand. Interest is
charged by utilizing a fluctuating rate based on the LIBOR (Advantage) rate plus 2.50%. The line of credit
remains in effect until May 31, 2022 and annually thereafter is contingent upon performance. The loan Is
collateralized by a first priority interest in all the assets of World Education, Inc. No funds were borrowed
during 2021 and as a result, as of September 30, 2021, the outstanding balance is $0 and no interest was
incurred on this loan during the year ended September 30, 2021.

John Snow, Inc.

World Education, Inc. has an unsecured revolving line of credit with John Snow, Inc. (a related party) with
a borrowing limit of up to $1,000,000. The loan was renewed on July 1,2019. Interest is charged by utilizing
a fluctuating rate based on the current prime rate plus 0.25%. The loan is payable oh demand and. in any
event, on or prior to June 30, 2022. The loan is not collateralized. No funds were borrowed during the year
and as a result, as of June 30. 2021, the outstanding balance is $0. No interest was incurred on this loan
during the year ended June 30, 2021.

Loan Payable - Paycheck Protection Act

In April, 2020, World Education, Inc. ("WEI") was granted a loan (the "Loan") in the aggregate amount of
$1,074,400, pursuant to the Paycheck Protection Program (the "PPP") under Division A, Title I of the
CARES Act.

The Loan, which was in the form of a Note dated April 23,2020, was scheduled to mature on April 23,2022
and bore interest at a rate of 1.00% per annum, payable monthly commencing in February 2020. Under
the terms of the PPP, the Loan was fully forgiven as of June 15, 2021, which is reflected as gain on
forgiveness of debt in the accompanying statement of activities.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2021

NOTE G - CONTINGENCIES

In accordance with the terms of its federal and state grants and contracts, the records of the Organization
are subject to audit. The Organization is, therefore, contingently liable for any disallowed costs.
Management believes that any adjustment, which might result from such an audit, would be immaterial to
the consolidated financial statements.

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. is a co-borrower (with a related party) of a demand loan with no
balance due at September 30, 2021.

Provisional indirect cost rates are negotiated with the AID on an annual basis. As of September 30, 2021,
actual indirect cost rates have been approved by AID for JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. through
December 31,2015 and World Education, Inc. through June 30,2018. Based on favorable past experience,
management believes the effects of changes to the overhead rates, if any, would not be material to the
consolidated financial statements.

The outbreak of COVID-19 has caused disruption in operations of businesses domestically and globally.
In response the Organization implemented cost savings and other measures to reduce operating expenses
and ensure adequate liquidity. Due to the uncertainty of the continued spread of the virus and economic
outlook, there may be short-term and long-term implications for operations of the Organization.

NOTE H - NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Donor restricted net assets of as of September 30, 2021 are restricted for use in specific programs and/or
projects that are specified by the donor.

NOTE I - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

John Snow, Inc.

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. ("R&T) and John Snow. Inc. ("JSI, Inc.") (a non-exempt
corporation) purchase consulting services from each other. The President and Director of R&T is the sole
stockholder of JSI, Inc. The two companies bill each other at the same rates that they bill federal and state
governments.

During the year ended September 30, 2021, JSI, Inc. billed R&T $22,395,454 for consulting services
(technical support). This amount is reflected under program services - consulting totaling $18,511,741 and
program services • other costs totaling $3,888,435, on the consolidated statements of functional expenses.
In addition, during the year end September 30,2021, R&T performed consulting services (technical support)
for JSI, Inc. totaling.$7,443,577.

As of September 30, 2021 the R&T was owed $762,616 from JSI.

The two companies also share facilities and pool various overhead expenses. For the year ended
September 30, 2021, R&T incurred $26,151,534 of overhead expenses (supporting services), of which
$10,887,356 was its share of JSI, Inc. incurred costs.

R&T is a co-borrower with JSI, Inc. on a commercial demand loan-revolving line of credit with an expiration
date of May 31,2022, which allows for borrowings up to $6,500,000. The loan is collateralized by a security
agreement with a first position lien on all corporate assets of R&T and JSI, Inc. including assignment of
promissory notes and security documents between the two companies. Interest is charged by utilizing a
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2021

fluctuating rate based on LIBOR (Advantage) plus 2.00% payable monthly in arrears, which at
September 30. 2021 was 2.09%. At September 30. 2021. there was no outstanding balance on this loan.

World Education. Inc. has an agreement with John Snow, Inc. whereby John Snow, Inc. will provide
administrative and technical support as requested from time to time by WEI, on arms-length terrhs as
agreed by WEI and JSI. Transactions between World Education, Inc. and John Snow. Inc. for the year
ended September 30, 2021 are summarized as follows;

Administrative and technical support 5 1,671,428
Other direct charges (including rent of $1,088,603) 1,493.832

$  3,165,260

The agreement is on a year-to-year basis and can be terminated by either party upon 90 days written notice
to the other.

Other

The Organization has an agreement with a related company to purchase services. Transactions with this
company were charged to sub-contracts expense and are as follows for the year ended September 30,
2021:

The Manoff Group, Inc. (a non-exempt corporation; 40% owned by
John Snow; Inc.) i ^.56A.^5^

$  1,564.751

NOTE J - RETIREMENT PLANS

R&T has a defined contribution profit sharing/401(k) plan covering substantially all of its employees. R&T
contributes an amount equal to 7% of the employee's monthly earnings, funded with each month's payroll.
In addition, employees receive a 100% match on the first 2% of contributions made to the plan. Employees
who are contributing less than 2% of their pay to their retirement account are automatically enrolled at 2%
either at the time of hire, or annually in July. Pension expense was $2,656,279 for the year ended
September 30, 2021.

WEI has a defined contribution tax sheltered annuity plan covering substantially all of its employees. WEI
contributes an amount equal to 7% of the employee's monthly earnings, funded with each month's payroll.
Additional voluntary contributions may be made by the employees. Participants of the plan are fully and
immediately vested when contributions are made. Pension costs incurred by World Education. Inc. were
$392,399 for the year ended June 30, 2021.

NOTE K - COMMITMENTS

Operating Leases

The JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. leases space for general offices under operating leases
expiring from 2022 through 2026. The leases contain renewal options for periods of up to five years.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2021

During the year ended September 30, 2021, rent expense under long-term lease obligations were
$622,797. Future obligations over the primary terms of the Company's long-term leases as of
September 30, 2021 are:

2022 $ 450,718
2023 396,612
2024 155,324
2025 160,680
2Q2g 166,036

.  $ 1,329,370

World Education, Inc. leases space for general offices on a year-to-year basis. Rent expense for the year
ended June 30, 2021 was $1,165,904.

NOTE L - CONCENTRATION OF FUNDING

The Organization receives a majority of its funding through contracts and grants with various departments
and agencies of the federal government.

The Organization received 10% or more of its revenues and support from the following sources for the year
ended September 30. 2021:

% of Total

Revenue Income

The Global Fund (PfSCM) .. $ 424,622.326 65%
U.S. Agency for International Development (R&T and WEI) $ 128,400,664 20%

The JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and World Education, Inc. received $128,400,664 from U.S.
Agency, for International Development as of September 30, 2021, which represents approximately 55% of
-total income for those entities.

NOTE M - LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF RESOURCES

The Organization maintains a policy of structuring its financial assets to be available as its general
expenditures, liabilities and other obligations come due. Given the proj^t-based nature of the
Organization's work, the annual budget is structured to break even and ensure that there are sufficient
inflows to cover budgeted outflows each year. Any use of the Organization's reserve, which is minimal, is
subject to management's review and approval.
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JSi Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2021

The following reflects the Organization's financial assets as of September 30. 2021, reduced by amounts
not available for general use within one year due to contractual or donor-imposed restrictions.

Cash and cash equivalents $ 96,415,811
Receivables for program work 44,323,084

Total financial assets available within one year 140,738,895

Less contractually restricted and donor restricted assets 86.737.432

Total financial assets available to management for
general expenditures within one year $ 54,001,463

The Organization also has two committed lines of credit totaling $8 million, which it could draw upon in the
event of an unanticipated liquidity need.

NOTE N - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through June 24, 2022, the date on which the
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. On November 29, 2021, the CEO and
Founder of John Snow, Inc. donated his ownership interest in John Snow. Inc. and its affiliates to the
Organization. Accordingly the Organization became the sole shareholder of John Snow, Inc., as such, it
•will be included in the Organization's consolidated financial statements starting fiscal year 2022.
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JSI R««*«rch ■ltd Training IntUlut*. Inc.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year andad Saptambar 30,2021

Fadaral OrantoriPan-through Oramof/Prooram THIa

U.S. AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT
DIract Grant:

USAID Foralgn Asaltsanca tor Program* Ovaraaat:
UGANDA NUMAT

NIGERIA TSHIP

SPRING

Advancing Partner*
Uva Laam & Play
PAKISTAN HSSP
AIDSFraa

TANZANIA CHSS

ZamblaUSAIDDiacovarHaaltfi -

Tlrrwr-LaaM RSHS

Ghana HIV/AIDS
Madagaacar CCH
BuUHaalOiyCiUat
Paktotan IHSS-SD

USAID Adv. Niftridon
Partnarahipi Plus
Kyryyz Cura Tubarculosis
TIFATB

OFOA ce PMC2
' MRITE

CHISU

USAID/Lao* MCH-N Activity

Pats-through Grant:
USAID Foreign Aitlslanca for Program* Oversea*;

Family Health Intemaa
Family Health IntemeO
PRB

Haantand AJUience IntL
. Heartland AKance ma •

John Snow Health Zambia
NCBACLUSA

PSCM,
PSCM

Paladkim International

Paledlum International

Paladhjffl Intemaiional

Pathfinder Interrtalional

The Trustee* o( TUFTS Col

Total Direct Grants- USAID

Epic VMMC
EpC Global
USAID PRO lAomentum 20
HAJ Nigeria TMAII
HAI Nigeria TUA 2020/2021
ZAM-Health Activity
Senegal FTF Cult Nut
Global Fund PPM

PISCM Clients

Data Fl

lAPHL HP*Grant

HP* lAPHLlI

Ethiopia TRANSFORM
STOPSpUover

Total Past-through Grants- USAID

U.S. AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT • Total

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Direct Grant;

Advancing System Improvements tor Key Issues in Woman's Health
DHHS Women* Health-NTC
DKHS Women* HeaBh-NTC

HIV-Relatsd Tratnlng and Technical Assistance -
' HRSA

HRSA

HRSA

HRSA

HRSA

HRSA

Family Planning PersormI Training -
FPNTC-SOl

TWe X-NTC

HIV Integrated Ping
HIV miegrated Pmg
HIV miegrated Pmg
RWHAPACE Health Lit

Planning CHAH
Planning CHATT

Aoencv or P**s^h^ouoh Number

S17-A-OCF00^)00l»-00

620Jk-0(K>»D0014-00

AID<)AA-A-11-00031

AID-OAA-A-12-OOCH7

AlO-OAA-L-12-00003

AID-391-A-1340002

AJ04]AA-A-14-00046

AICL621-A-14-000004

AID-611-A-ie00004

AID-472-A-18-00001

AI[>«41-A-164M007

AI0067-A-10-00001

AIO-OAA-A-17-0002B

AID-391-A-17-00002

7200AAieC0p070
7200AA18CA00032

7201151ieCA00001

7200AA19CA00013

720FDA19GR002ei

7200AA20CA00017

7200AA20CA00009

72043921CA0001

CA«7200AA19CA00002
7200AA19CA00002

720CIAA20CA00003

720e2020CA00001

'720e2020CA00001
720611121CA00001

720e6S18CA00001

N/A

N/A

720QAAieCA00004

A10-OAA-A-1S-00051

A10OAA-A-15-000S1

Aloe63A1700002

7200AA20CA00032

ASTWH200080-01-00
ASTWH200090-02-00

U69HA30144

U69HA30144-04

U69HA30144-05

Ue9HA30143

Ue9HA390SS

U69HA390e&431

FPTPA0Cie028-03

FPTPAO0eO3O

Federei

AsslstaiKe

Listlno* >

9S.001

06.001

Federal

Expenditures

<1,627)
(16,757)

Total Subcontract

Exoectses

08,001 (14,612) (14.812)
98.001 (96,215) (70,506)
08.001 (2,210) -

08.001 4.865
08.001 (78.270)
98001 1.300

96.001 22.422.542 324.770

98.001 485,067

08.001 4,581.558 1.145.053

08.001 4,416,221 254.815

08,001 1,164,732 483,023

08.001 10.000,606 1,590,465

08.001 21,724,216 9,703,057

08001 2.560.072 2,465,053
08001 3.675.035 858.560

08001 3.230.631 1.000.160

98.001 353.540 2.591

96.001 6,761.001 2.846,903

96.001 3,034,431 293,749

08.001 10,376
84,245,306 20,864.730

98.001 600.332

98.001 •  2.175.005

96.001 1.666.246

96.001 57.831

06.001 , 410,264

08,001 256,426

96.001 298,067

08.001 3,020

08.001 794,388

08.001 1,806,776

98001 32.666

96.001 242.852 16,800

98.001 4.010.626

96.001 022,466

14.266.087 - 16.600

98,512,293 20,901,530

93.068 2.275.441 220.000

93088 5.578
2.261.010 220.000

03.145 126.311 69,.500
03.145 165

03.145 550,693

03.145 76,892 15,000

03.145 00,596 43,415

03.145 379,556 9,785

1,226,217 157,700

03.260 2.326 .

93.260 2.857.035 44.000

2,659,361 44,000
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JSI R«»*areh and Training Inalltuta, inc.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Yaar arxiad Saplambar 30.2021

Fadaral Oranior/Paaa-lhrouah Grantof/Pfoofam TKIa

Haallh Sytiom* Strangthaning and HIV/AIDS Pravanbon, Cara and Traatmant •

HRSARRHO

HRSA RRHO

HRSA RRHO

Taanaga Pragnaney Pravaniion Program

OKHS

OHHS

HIV Emargancy Ralial Projact Grants:
RWHAP ACE HaalOi Lil

HIV Cara Formula Grants;

RWHAP ACE Haallh U

Spadal Pro^acu of National SIgniflcanca:
SSC for PWH and CUD

SSC lor PWH and OUO

SSC for PWH and OUO

TPP-NTC

TPP-NTC

Aoancv or Pa»a4hrouQh Numbar

UH5HA307e9

UHSHA307jS9^

UH5HA3070WM

1 TPSAHOOOOOO^I-00

TPSAHOOOOOe-02-00

U09HA30143^

Ue9HA301434)5

U90HA3319(M}1

U90HA3310(M)2

U90HA3310(M}3

03.200

93.260

93.260

93.297

93 297

93.914

93.917

93.920

93.928

03.928

Fadaral

Exoandlturaa

192,142

(480)

578,503

770,150

1.302.843

4.038

1.300,878

(7.500)

275,175

(651)

2.104.895

105.015

2.209.259

Total Dirsci Grants- Daparlmani of Haalth artd Human San/icas 10,920,505

Total Subcontract

Expanaaa

(7.500)

38.000

359,021

20,482

379,503

831,703

Paas-lhrough Grant:

Pubfc Haatih Emargancy Praparadnast:

NHOHHS

EnvlronntentsI Pubic Haatth artd Emargartcy Rasponta:
MA Oapl. of Pubic Haallh

NH DHHS

NH DHHS

PHPSFY21

MDPH Asthma

PHPS19

PHPSFY21

AgraamantO7.09.20

RFR 500224

AgraamantO7.09.20

Aoraamant07.09.20

93.070

93.070

93.070

87,793

65.740

(<00)

68.115

133.455

40.520

40.520

Tachnical and NorvFlnancial Assisianca to Haallh Cantors:

HRSA '

HRSA '

HRSA

HRSA

CommHSh CtrCT

Convn KSh Ctr CT

HfTEQ

HfTEQ

HfTEQ

HRSA HfTEQ ARP

CHCACT Training FY21

CHCACTUOS

U30CS2936e

U30CS29366-06

U30CS293e6

U3FCS41776

AgraamantO9.lS.20

Agraamant09.l4.2l

Cooparatfva Agraamants to StalasTTarrttortes for the Coordination and Oavalopmant of Primary Cara OfTlcas:
SiataofMalna ME OHHS KPSA FY20 CDO-20-2215

WyoirtngDapt of Haalth WYPCQFY20 0RH4)212-0
Rl'OapL of Haalth RiePIFY21-26 7807811

Injury Pravaniion and Control Rasaarch and Stala and Community Basad Programs •
Rl Dapt. of Haalth Rl EPIFY21-26

Community Programs to Improve Minority Health Gram Program •
Boston fria^Caniiw Proiact RECOVER Eval

HlV-Ralaiad Training and Tachnical Assistance:
National Alianca of Stat NASTAO EHE SCP Sub

National Minority AIDS Co ELEVATE

Chidhood Lead Poisoning Pravaniion Proiacts, Stata and Local Chidhood Lead Poisoning
Prevention artd SurvaBance of Blood Lead Levals In Cfddran*:

NH DHHS PHPS FY2i

NHOHHS PHPSFY22

Family Planning Services'.
MA Dapt of Pubic HeaRh

NH DHHS

NY Dapt of Haallh

Mississippi State Dapt of Haatih

Grants to States id Support Oral Health WorMorca AetMiias •

NH OHHS

NH DHHS

M

O

DPH FP Data Sys

NH FP Data System FYis

NYS FP Training

MSOH FP Needs Assessment

ral Haaltn Promo

PHPS FY21

7807811

N/A

2020CO-326401-657

Ue9HA39335

AgrtamentQ7.09.20

AgraemantQ?. 10.21

1 FPHPA00642S-01-00

05-95-90-002010-5^
D0i01-C33229GG-34500

FPHA0064754)2-00'

05-95-90-902010-15270000

AgraamantO7,09.20

93.129

93.129

93.129

93.129

93.129

93.129

93.130

93.130

93.130

93.136

93.137

93.145

93.145

93.197

93.197

93.217

93217

93.217

93.217

93.236

93.236

80.258

651,262

63,218

13,950

591

663

800,942

32.500

36.086

4.996

77.482

59,480

28,384

82,327

60,715

143,042

38,988

164,207

203,195

48.569

3.642

253.232

06.242

401.685

194.546

29,874

224,420

149.133

30,815

3,906

183,654

45,445

2,825

48,070

70,600

70.600

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Servicas Pro^ecU of Regional and National SIgniflcanca:
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JSt Ra«««rch and Training Instltuta, inc.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Yaar andad Saptambar 30,2021

Fadaral

Aasiatanca

Fadaral Grantern>asa-(hrough Orantar/Preoram TBIa

Action/Boaton Comm Oaval A8CD HIV/SA Eval AgraamaniQl.11,19 93243

NHOHHS BOAS Cantar SFY16 62058501 93.243

SouVi End Conwnunity SECHCOpMds Agraamantoio,l5,1S 93.243

SiQ'ialu'* HaaKhcara Broddon OBAT AgraamantQlOri/lS 93.243

Univartity of NH SYTTA-UNH Subawatd 1H79TI080192-01 93.243

Rl Oapt of Bav Hither Oav PFSFY20 3829405 93.243

Hartwr Homaa. Inc Harbor Hocrrat TCE MUD AgraarrrentQ 11,21.16 93.243

TfWounty Community Rl Host Campaign 1 AgraamantOS,20,20 93.243

Woonaoehat Pravanaon Rl Host Campaign 2 AgraamantQ8,05.20 93.243

Kant County Pravantlon RIHost Campaign 4 AgraamarttQS, 16.20 93243

Eaat Bay Ragional Rl Host Campaign 5 AgraamantO5,l4.20 93.243

Nawport County Pravanlion Rl Host Campaign 6 AgraamantQ5,l4.20 93 243

South County Pravantlon Rl Host Campaign 7 AgraamantQ5,19.20 93243

RICARES RICARES RCSP Evaluation A(KaamantQ3,4,2i 93243

Rhoda Laland Studant RISAS Rl Suiclda Prvntlon Agraamant08.4.2i 93,243

Harbor Homaa. Itk Harbor Homes GBHI AgraamantQI 2,4,18 93,243

Immunization Cooparadva Agraamants:

' MA Dapi. of PuUie HaaRh High Risk Adult Irrun CAPACITYBLD500e24M04 93288

MA Dapt, of PubSc Haalth Mils Support Desk PRF61 93.288

NH DHHS PHPSFY21 AgraafflantO7.09,20 93.288

NH DHHS PHPS FY21 AgraamaniO7,09,20 93.288

NH DHHS PHPS FY22 AgraamaniQ7,10,2l 93.288

Orug-Fraa Communittaa Support Program Granb •

Boya & Gifia Club of Souh Souhagan Valiay Eval N/A 93,278

Eaat Boaion Nalgtibortiood E Boston Vapa&MJPravl AgraamantQS.4,20 93^278

Child Davalopmant and. Survallanca. Raaaarch and Pravantlon -
ArooalooK County Action MEJVN Agraamant07.23,l6 63,312

Epidamiolooy and Laboratory Capacity for Infactioua Diaaaaaa (ELC):
MA Oapt, of Public Haalth MDPH HAIFY20 500824 63,323

MAOapiofPublcHaanh MA DPH Covid Dash Support PRF81 93,323

NH DHHS SORH NH Proiact FVsttlna AgraamantQ 12,1',20 63,323

NH DHHS PHPS FY22 AgraafflantQ7.10,21 63,323

National and Ststa Tobacco Control Program

NH DHHS SORH • Com Based Tob Prav AgraamaniQ 11,5,20 93,387

Pubic Haalth Emargancy Raaponaa: Cooparaiiva Agraamant for Emargartcy Rasponsa: Public
Haalth Criala Raaponaa;

NH DHHS PHPSFY21 AgraamantO7,09,20 93.354

21 at Can^ Curas Act • Pradsion Madidna Initiativa •
NH DHHS Oral Haalth Promo 05-95-90-90201345270000 93.388

Improving iha Haalth of Amatlcana ttvough Pravantlon and Managamant of Diabata* and HaWt
DIsaasa and Stroka:

CTDapiof Puble Haalth CT Cfvonic Disease •2020-0021 93 428

GA Dapt Public Haalth GA DPH CHW Network Dav 40503031-21213493 93 428

I4A DapL of Pubic Haalth MDPH Diabatas 3 PFR 500224 93428

NH DHHS Chronic Corxlitions Mdtipla- saa notes 93.428

NH DHHS SORH Chronic Conditions AgraamantQ4,5,2i 93.428

Stata of Makia ME Pradiabatas Marketing 1 NU58DP008545-04 93,428

Evary Studant Suecaads Act/Praactiool Oavabpmant Grants
School Adminittratlva Uni SAU21 PDG 93.434

UnitadWayolMast Bay UWGSNA 2849 93.434

Innovativa Stata wrd Local Pubic Haalth Stratagiat to pravant and Managa Dlabalas and Haan
DIsaasa and Strotia:

MA Dapt, of Pubic Haalth MDPH Diabatas RFR 580224 93,435

Colorado DPH Strata^ Planning 93,435

WELL-INTEGRATED SCREENING AND EVALUATION FOR WOMEN ACROSS THE NATION (WISEWOMAN)

NH DHHS SORH Chronic Cortditions AgraamantQ4,S,21 93,438

Fadaral

Eanandlturaa

24.S18

822.031

• 57.228

47,1(W

9.121

27.134

25.304

22.050

1.004

272

10.060

4.732

4,998

6.843

2,854

43,019
612.581

21,843

383,701

41,476

18,415

18,243
483,481

8,293

15 339

18,071

152,410

125.898

114,988

122,443

515,515

188,109

828,885

80,822

312,253

18.836

28.280

53.514

108.812

90.227

806.705

7,975

54.445

82.420

88.518

1.484

70.002

35,035

Total Subcontract

Eananaaa

29.823

5.148

34.789

13,400

8,009

40,204

11,880

51,884
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JSI Rttaarch and Training InKlluta, Inc.

SCHEDULE OE EXPENDITURES OP FEDERAL AWARDS

Yaar andad Saptambar SO, 2021

Fadaral Orantof/Pait-tltfouqh GrantorlProoram Titia Aoancv or Paaa-thfouoh Numbar

Fadaral

AaalatarKa

Uatlnaa 9

Fadaral Total Subcontract

_6£gandltura^_ Exoanaaa

Subatanca U»a-Dlsordar Pravantlon mat Promotat OpMd Racovary and Traatmont
(SUPPORT) tor Pabants and Communiilaa Act -

Rl and Piovldanca Planiai RCLAS Caraar Pathways

PPHF: Radal and Ethnic Approaches to ComrrHinity Haaim Program Anancad soWy by Pubic
Pravaruion and HaaBh Funds

Lowal Communiiy Health LoWeA REACH

150,854

59,097

75.903

Pravandva Haafth and Health Sarvicas Block Grant Furtdad solaiy with Pravanbon and Pubic
Haaim Futtds (PPHF):

Missouri Opt o< HIth & Sn BCBH PY21
RIOapLof Health RIEPI2016

OpioldSTR:

MA Dept. ol Pubic Haatm

NH Alcohol SOug Abuse

Rl Oept ol Bav Hither Oav

SOR and COC Grant

NHAOA NH Stimulani Summit

RIWFDSOR FY20

Paul Covardei Nation^ Acute Stroke Program Natlonal Center (or Chronic Disease Prevention
and Heaim Promotion -

MA Dept. ol Pubic Heaim Covardal Chart FY21

MA 0^1. ol Pubic Heaim Stroke Chan Audits

Capacity Building Assistenca (CBA) tor Higtvlntpeet HIV Prevention;
CICATELLI ASSOCIATES. INC COC HIP Training

CCATELU ASSOCIATES, INC CAI PROMISE MINI TRAINING

Maiamal. Inlant and Earty ChHhood Home Visiting Grant:

NH OHMS

Natiottal Btotarrorism Hospital Praparadrtass Program:

NH DHHS

NH DHHS

PHPS FY22

VT Oapartmant ol Haaim

PHPSFY21

PHPS FY22

•2020VTCSC

Cancer Pravantioo and Control Programs (or State, Tarrttorial and Tribal Organizations;
MA Dept. ol Pubic Heaim

NH DHHS

NH DHHS

' NH DHHS

University Ol Vermont

HIV Cera Fonnuia Grants:

MA DapL ol Pubic HatRh

MA Dept. ol Pubic Heaim

Special Pro)acu ol National SignMcanca:

National Aiianca ol Siai

Natha HawaSn Haaim Care Systems

UrWvarsity ol NH

HIV Prevention ActNltias Haaim Department Based:

NHOHHS

MA DapL Ol Pubic Haaim

NH DHHS

Prostate Cancer Disparity

Oral HaaKh Promo

Chronic Conditions

SORH Chronic Conditions

UVMCC Pilot Evaluation

Policy Oav Eva! 01

FY 17 HIV OA

NASTAD • TAVIE Eval Proj

BuUIng Futures Togamar

PHPSFY22

FY 17 HIV OA

PHPSFY21

Assisianca Programs tor Chronic DIsaasa Prevention and Control:
NHOHHS Chronic Cor>ditions

NHOHHS SORH Chronic Conditions

Block Grants lor Pravanbon and Traatmani ol Substance Abuse:

CS202S19IXI1

7549784

PRF81

BOAS-21-22-SOR

N/A

RFR 500224

PRF81

AGREEMENT 04.0.21

AgraamanlO7.10.21

AgraamanlO7.09.20

AgraamaniO7.10.21

39704

500224

05-95-90-902010^5270000

MuUpla- sea notes

Agraamant04.5.21

AgraamaniOA.27.21

CAPACITYBL0500824M04

PRF61

N/A

T28HP39482

AgraamenlO7-l0.21

PRF81

AgraamaniO7.09.20

MulUpla- sea notes

Agraamani04.S.2l

93.758

93.758

93.788

93.788

93.788

93.810

93.810

93.834

93.834

93.870

93.889

93.889

93.889

93.898

93.898

93.898

93.898

93.898

93,917

93,917

93.928

93.932

93.940

93.940

93.940

93.945

93.945

48,038

41,678

87,714

383,247

43,285

(1.868)

404,884

35,587.

6

35,593

82,886

3.881

88.549

48.928

949

4,159

24.545

29,853

32,877

5.680

33,838

21.848

2.909

98,752

270,158

1,359,370

1,629,528

30,419

25.475

18.044

15.258

89.047

122.347

25,419

5.775

31.194

378,087

376,087

24,985

11,680

11,880

RlD^artmantol Behavioral Haalthcara. RIPRCll
Davalopmant Disabiitias and Hospitals

Saxualy Transmitlad Diseases (STO) Prevention and Control Grants •
MA DapL ol Pubic Haaim MDPHRateia

Pravantlva Haatth artd Haaim Sarvicas Block Grant:

Missouri Dpi olHtm 8 Sn BCBHFYSI

NH DHHS Oral Haatth Promo

310.818

PRF61

CS202S19001

05-95-90-902010^5270000

93,977

93.991

93.991

13.551

15.489

856.250

871,739

585.377

585.377
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JSI R«tMrch and Training InitKuta, Inc.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Yaar aodad Saptambar M, 2021

Fadaral Oraf>tofffaaa4hroiiah Orantefffregram TRIa

Mitarrul and ChU HaalOi Sarvica* Block Grant to ttta Sialea:

Rl OapL ol HaaBh RIEPIFY21-2e

NHOHHS PHPS^I
UnivaraityofNM SHApl

Aoancv or Paaa^hrt^u<lh Wuwbar

7607011

Aoraamant07.09.20

Sut>av«ard L0032

Total Pa»t-lhreugh Grant*- Daparvnani of Haaltn and Human Sarvica*

U.8. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • ToUl

Fadaral'

A*»l*lanca

LJ«Uno* $

93.994

93.994

93.994

Fadaral

Expandlturaa

56.767

54.603

21.312

132.662

6708.271

20.620.776

Total Subcontract

Eaoanaaa

2.3S0.801

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

TSCA TWa IV Staia Laad Grant* CariiAcaiion ol Laad-ea*ad Paint Profaationalt:
NHOHHS PHPSFY21

NHOHHS PHPSFY22

AgraamantQ?.09.20

AgraamantO7.10.21

66.707

66,707

66,397

19,473

85,670

26,330

2,505

30,635

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY - ToUl 85.670 30,635

SNAP CLUSTER

Pasa-lhrough Grant:

Conwnunity Food Pro^aet*
SpringOald Community

SNAP CLUSTER • Total

SCGHFP AgraamanlQ6/10/20 20.180

20.160

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

Olract Grant:

Boatlrtg Safety Fhandal A**i*tanca:
U.S. Coa*t Guard Ufa Jackal Study

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY - ToUl

3319FAN119207 07.012 278.316

276,316
j&m.
16.060

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Pais-througl) Grant:

Education SiabaSzation Fund

Nsdonal Community Haalth
Hampton Unirartity

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION- ToUl

NCHPArizorw

HMPTN UNIV - VA WorWorca

Asr*amantQ8.6,21 64.425

04.425

23.154

147.192

170,346 '

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF STATE

Olract Grant:

Tha U.S. Praaldanr* Emargancy Plan for AIDS Ralaf Program* -
U.S. Suta Dapartmant DREAMS OGAC

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF STATE • ToUl

S-U1A0M-16-CA-1103 (80.935)

(60.935)

(63,416)

(63.416)

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Paa*-througl) Grant:

Suta and Community Highsway Safety-'

Rl Dapartmant ol

Offlca ol InUmational Sclanca attd Englnaaring- total

ToUl Expartdlturaa of Fadaral Award*

RICOT-PREVCON 3695956 15.404

15.404

S  110,630.250 I  23,221,630

24



DocuSign Envelope ID: F2529697-09B5-42B5-9CF1-9259F39ABE73

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

September 30, 2021

NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal grant
activity of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. under programs of the federal government for the year
ended September 30, 2021. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements. Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.. it is not
intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of JSI Research
and Training Institute, Inc.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(1) Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance,
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

(2) Negative amounts shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits, which management
has determined are not material to the Schedule nor the pr^ram to which they relate, made in the
normal course of business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years. Accordingly, such
adjustments are presented on a current basis.

(3) Federal Assistance Listing numbers and pass-through entity identifying numbers, are presented
when available.

NOTE 3 - INDIRECT COST RATE

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate
allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
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Grant Thornton

OXANT TMORMTON LLP

75 Slate Street. 13" Floor

Boston, MA 02109

D *1 617 723 7900

P  *1617 723 3640

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT

AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

We have audited, in accordance v/ith auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States {Government Auditing Standards), the consolidated financial statements of JSI
Research and Training Institute, Inc. and subsidiaries (the "Entity"), which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as of Septemtier 30, 2021, and the
related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash fiows for
the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated June 24, 2022.

Report on internal control over financial reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we
considered the Entity's internal control over financial reporting ("internal control") as a
basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the

, purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, bgt not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Entity's internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Entity's internal
control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.
A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the
Entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that Is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described In the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weakriesses or significant
deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

GT.COM Gram Thornton LLP is the U.S. member Arm of Grant Thornton imemational Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and each of iU member Arms
are separate legal entitles and are not a worldwide partnership.
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GrantThornton

Report on compliance and other matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Entity's consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant .
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such
an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Govemment Auditing
Standards in considering the Entity's internal .control and compliance. Accordingly,
this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Boston. Massachusetts

June 24. 2022
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@ GrantThornton

ORAMTTHORNTON UR

75 Stato SiTMt. 13" Floor

Boston. MA 02109

D *1617 723 7900

P  *1617 723 3640

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR

PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED

BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

Report on compliance for each major federal program

Opinion on each major federal program
We have audited the compliance of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and
subsidiaries (the "Entity") with the types of compliance requirements Identified as .
subject to audit in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget's QMS Compliance
Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Entity's major
federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2021. The Entity's major federal
programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, the Entity complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material
effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2021.

Basis for opinion on each major federal program
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America (US GAAS); the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States (Govemmenf Auditing Standards), and
the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the
Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the Entity and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our
audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. Our audit does not provide a'legal determination of the Entity's compliance
with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Other matter - federal expenditures not Included In the compliance audit
The Entity's consolidated financial statements include the operations World
■Education. Inc. ("WEI"), which expended $29,799,901 in federal awards for the period
from July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021, that is not included in the Entity's schedule of
expenditures of federal awards during the year ended September 30, 2021. Our
compliance audit, described in the Opinion on Each Major Federal Program section of

GT.COM Gram Thomlon LLP Is tha U.S. mamMr ftrm or Grant Thornton Intemattonal Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and aach ol Its membar rums
era taparata legal antiiles arxl are not a woddaida partnership.
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Grant Thornton

our report, does not include the operations of WEI because WE! was subjected to a
separate audit of its compliance with the types of compliance requirements described
in the 0MB Compliance Supplement for the period from July 1. 2020 to June 30.
2021.

Responsibilities of management for compliance
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above
and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over
compliance with the requirements of.laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions
of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the Entity's federal programs.

'Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of compliance
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material
noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether
due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on the Entity's compliance based on our
audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with US GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will
always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting
material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there Is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the Entity's
compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, Government Auditing Standards,
and the Uniform Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit.

«  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the Entity's
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control over compliance relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and
to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the
Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Entity's internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no
such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, and any significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we
identified during the audit.
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Grant Thornton

Report on internal control ove^r compliance

A deficiency In internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of
a control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal
course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
noncompllance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a
timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is
a reasonable possibility that material noncompllance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not l^e prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compiiance section above
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these [imitations,
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in the Entity's internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.
However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over .
compliance may exist that have not t>een identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

The purpose of this Report on Internal Control Over Compliance is solely to describe
the scope of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that
testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is
not suitable for any other purpose.

LL.^

Boston, Massachusetts

June 24,2022



DocuSign Envelope ID: F2529697-09B5-42B5.9CF1-9259F39ABE73

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

September 30, 2021

SECTION I. SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS:

Financial Statements

The type of report issued on whether the financial statements
audited were prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP

Internai controi over financiai reporting:

•  Material weaknesses identified?

•  Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

•  Noncompiiance material to the financial statements noted?

Federal Awards

internai controi over major programs:

•  Materiai weaknesses identified? .

•  Significant deficiency{ies) identified?

Type of auditors' report issued on compiiance for major programs

Any audit findings which are required to be reported under 2 CFR
section 200.51(a):

identification of major programs:

Federai Assistance Listings Number

98.001

Doiiar threshoid used to distinguish between Type A and Type B
programs:

Auditee quaiified as iow risk auditee?

Unmodified

No

None noted
/

No

No

None noted

Unmodified

No

Name of Federal Program

Foreign Assistance for Programs
Overseas

$3,000,000

No
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and AfTiliate

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2021

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

None noted.

SECTION III - FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS

None noted.

32
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JSl Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR'S FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

September 30, 2021

Finding
Number Finding Summary Status

2020-001 Certain Partnership for Supply Chain Management
accounts receivable and deferred revenue

amounts were improperly recorded in the fiscal year
2020 financial statements, prior to being identified and
adjusted as part of the audit process.

Management has
implemented processes and
controls such that this finding
did not reoccur in 2021.
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JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.

Board of Trustees

Margaret Crotty, MPH, MBA

President & CEO

JSI

Abdourahmane Diailo, MD, MPH

Kenya Representative

World Health Organization

Sandro Galea, MD, MPH, DrPH

Dean and Robert A. Knox Professor

Boston University School of Public Health

Chair of the Board

Chair, Board Governance Committee

HaflzAdamjee

Chair, World Education, Inc. Board

Mike Useem, M.A., Ph.D.

William and Jacalyn Egan Professor of

Management

Wharton School at University of Pennsylvania

Updated January 2023
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Amy Daniels

JSI, 501 South Street. Bow. Ne\v Hampshire (603)573-5338 a({(mich%!\i COin

Education

BOSTON COLLEGE

Master of Social Work

University OF New Hampshire

Bachelor of Social Work

Experience

JSI, Bow, New Hampshire
Senior Consultant, 2014-present

Associate Director, Northern New England, 2019- 2022

Center for Excellence on Addiction. Director. January 2016-present. Direct multiple teams and multiple projects in
consultation, training, technical assistance, communications, data analysis and evaluation for alcohol and other drug
misuse prevention, substance use disorder treatment, recovery support services, continuum of care development, and
integration of behavioral health into healthcare including needs assessment, system capacity assessment, strategic
planning, SBIRT and MAT implementation, and policy recommendation. Specifically:
• Leading teams to achieve diverse deliverables supporting the alcohol and other drug continuum of cafe •
Providing strategic planning, consultation, technical assistance, and training
• Leading evaluation and data services deliver)'
• Developing and disseminating written guidance on best practices
• Consultation specific to evidence informed programs, policies and practices to address alcohol, tobacco and

other drug problems including the opioid epidemic and the increasing negative consequences of stimulant use.

Student Assistance Network. July 2022 - present. Support effective implementation of Student Assistance Programs in
NH schools. Contracted as the facilitating organization for technical assistance, financing, and contracts management.

NH Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Drugs. January 2016 - present. Providing expert consultation and
support to the Commission including presentations, annual reporting, data tracking, best practices research, strategic
planning, and plan implementation.

Medicaid to Schools Training and Technical Assistance Center. March 2021 - present. Developing training and
support for school districts to maximize resource recovery for health services and expand access to behavioral health
services.

NH State Youth Treatment Initiative. Provided subject matter expertise, strategic planning, grant writing, and systems
development technical assistance to the NH Department of Behavioral Health initiative to plan a comprehensive system
of care for youth and young adults with substance use disorders.

HRSA Behavioral Health Center for Excellence. Provided subject matter expertise and technical assistance to HRSA
grantees throughout the United States.

Youth SBIRT Initiative. Developed written guidance, website, and supportive implementation materials. Provided
training and technical assistance on-site, through a learning collaborative, and at national conferences throughout the US.
Nationally recognized SBIRT expertise.

Fostering Effective Integration Evaluation. Provided recommendations for priorities for future funding for primary
care and behavioral health integration support for the Blue Cross Blue Shield Foundation of Massachusetts through site
visits,.literature review, and comprehensive reporting.

ADaniels I
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New Futures, Concord, NH

Policy Director, 2010-2014
Responsible for advocacy to maximize the implementation of the Affordable Care Act in New Hampshire. Supported the
development of the NH substance use disorder services array through Medicaid expansion and parity in the federally facilitated
Marketplace.

Child and Family Services of New Hampshire (Waypoint), Manchester, NH

Youth and Young Adult Programs Director, 1992-2010
Progressive career at statewide, non-profit child services organization. Developed, implemented and directed
• alcohol and other drug prevention programs;

• comprehensive youth/young adult substance use disorder outpatient and intensive outpatient services; •
home-based services for court ordered youth and families;
• runaway and homeless youth prevention and emergency response; and
• homeless street outreach programs in communities throughout NH.

Including federal, stale, local, and charitable grant writing and contract management; development and oversight of $ 1.5 million
annual budget and management and supervision of 20+ staff members.

Southern New Hampshire University, Manchester, NH
Sociology Adjunct Professor, 2017-2018
Develop and delivered Bachelor's level classes including Introduction to Sociology, and the Sociology of Social Problems.

Hesser College, Concord and Manchester, NH
Psychology/Sociology Adjunct Professor, 2008-2012
Developed and delivered Bachelor's classes including Intro to Sociology, Intro to Psychology, and Intro to Human Behavior.

Direct Human Services positions, various locations, NH. 1988-1992

■ License/Certifications

Licensed Independent Ci^inical Social Worker (LICSW) NH# 1311
Certified Prevention Specialist IC & RC

Recent Publications

National Council on Mental Wellbeing, coNTRiBLmNC author. Improving Adolescent Health: Facilitating Change for
E.xcellence inSBIRT (2018).

LaFave, L.R., Bradley, M., Murray, A.R., Pepin (Daniels), A.L., Sprangers, K.S. & Thies K.M. (2018). Lessons learned from
implementing screening, brief intervention, and referral to treatment for youth and young adults in primary care
settings. Integrative Pediatrics and Child Care, 1(1), 8-13.
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JULIE YERKES, ED. M., CPS

JSI, SO! South Street. Bow, New Hampshire 03304 (603) 573-3377. juliej>erkes<^s\.com

education

harvard graduate school of education, CAMBRIDGE, MA

Ed. M. Human Dex'elopment and Psychology: Risk and Prevention

MIDDLEBURY college, MIDDLEBURV, VT.

B.A. English and Italian; Concentration: Secondary Education

EXPERIENCE

•JSI, Boston, Massachusetts
Pre\>ention Programs Manager, January 2020 - present
Provide Substance Misuse Prevention content knowledge and expertise for statewide technical assistance resource center on a
variety of substance use prevention projects. Consult on the development, implementation and evaluation of evidence-based ;
policies, programs, and practices in substance misuse prevention services. Direct the Community Engagement for the
Partnership® drugfreeNH, convening stakeholders from across the state to increase substance use prevention communication
knowledge, skills, and best practices. Facilitate NH Service to Science, a process through which innovative prevention programs
can demonstrate effectiveness and earn the designation of Evidence Base Program. Provide TA to programs seeking Service to
Science designation.

NH Teen Institute, Manchester, New Hampshire
Parent Education Coordinator, July 2017 —January 2020
Networked and built relationships with prevention professionals, schools, community groups, and prevention coalitions across
New Hampshire. Organized parent education program in each of the 13 regional public health networks. Collected data and
engaged in program evaluation as part of program fidelity efforts and outcome tracking. Oversaw management and reporting
requiremerRs of state and/or local contracts.-Stayed current on ATOD irends, research, and best practices. Presented at state and
national conferences. Provided professional development for individuals working with youth.

School of Creative and Performing Arts, New York, New York
Associate Director, January 2008 - July 20! 7
Identified gaps in services and adjusted systems to meet changing needs of clients and staff. Developed and streamlined systems
to increase quality, efficiency, and Consistency of programming while minimizing risk. Researched rules, regulations, and best
practices and developed educational and training materials for faculty and staff. Developed systems to address student health
issues and staff responsiveness. Coordinated operational areas in order to meet the mission of the school and program objecti ves.
Ensured successful high-quality implementation of program across four campuses, focusing on student safety and wellbeing,
positive relationship with host universities, and professional satisfaction for stafT. Provided technical assistance, training, and
advisement to carnpus directors.

New Hampshire institute of Politics, Manchester, NH
Civic Education Programs Manager, November 2005 - January 2008
Developed and enhanced school- and community- based prevention programs. Created and implemented professional
development opportunities for teachers and school administrators. Worked with individual and groups of students to enhance their
leadership skills. Researched, tracked, and monitored trends within state and national prevention and education fields.
Represented the NHIOP at state and national meetings and conferences.

The Medical Foundation, Boston, Massachusetts
Prevention Specialist Intern, September 2002 — July 2003
Developed and implemented ATOD and violence prevention curricula in middle and high schools and community health centers
in underserved urban communities. Supported student development throughout prevention training program. Facilitated group
cohesion and created a respectful community among students from diverse cultural and economic backgrounds. Built
relationships with school administrators and faculty in order to successfully integrate youth development programs into the school
schedule.

J. Yerkes 1
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JULIE YERKES

JSI, 501 South Street 2"''/Joor, Bow, New Hampshire 03304 (603)573-3377 jii!ie_yerkes@/si.com

The New England School of English, Cambridge, Massachusetts
Teacher of English as a Foreign Language and Assistant Academic Director, May 2000 - August 2005
Advised students to maximize their learning and achieve academic goals. Led monthly teacher development meetings. Taught
intensive English language program for students and professionals representing over 15 countries. Customized curriculum and
used various teaching techniques to meet students' individual needs. Promoted understanding and tolerance of diverse abilities,
views, and cultures.

training I certifications
4  N

ew Hampshire Prevention Certification Board, Concord, New Hampshire
Certified Pre\>ention Specialist, 2018—present
♦  P
revention Solutions @ EDC, Waltham, Massachusetts
Substance Abuse Prevention Skills Training, Facilitator, 2020

PROFESSIONALS AFFILIATIONS | MEMBERSHIP
♦  ■ N

ew Hampshire Prevention Certification, Board member, 2020
♦  N
ew England Prevention Technology Transfer Center, Advisory Council member, 2020

J. Yerkes 2
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Contractor Name

Key Personnel

Name - ' • . Job Title

3  .. M • .

Salary ■Arhount Paid
from this Contract' •

•Julie Yerkes Project Director
Student Assistance Network
Director

$50,520

Amy Daniels Subiect Matter Expert $45,975 .
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Ldri'Ai Shibinctlc'

Coaimiuloaer'

Kilja 51:Fo>
Dimter

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA ViqRAL HEALTH

i39PL£ASANt^EET,j;ONCbRDi-NH 03301
i603-27i-9544 Md6452-334S Zxt ̂ 4

F«i; 603-271-4332 TDD Accajs: |.8b0-73«964" w^.(ihhs.nh:8oy

November 22, 2022

Mis Excetlency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Horiorabje Pound)

StateTHpbse
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorise Ufe.De^p^ of Health and Human Services, Olylsion for ̂ Haylpral Healili,
to enter Ifitb a Sqle'^^ amen^ent, to .an existjng contract, awarded through.a comp^^
bid .process; with JSIjResearch & Train^^^ Inc. (y^161611), Bow. New.Hampshire, to

. add furidirig to^exparid arid'enhanc^ Student Assistance Prograrhs training, .technical assistant,
and infrastru6ture,:lhroughdiLh;t^^ t)y increasing the pnce Rmitatioh l^ $1,600,000.from
$2,306,000 to.$3,36p,O06,with nd'dh'ahge to the contract-completion date of June.30, 2023,
effective upon Goyiemior'and Council approval. 100%.FederarFunds.

The original coritrad was approved by Governor and Council on July 27, 2022, Hem #9.
. Recently, the NH jFiscal.Cqnr^mittee a^epte and apprbv^ Governor's C^ce^fpr Emergency
Relief qnd(Rec6yery (GQFERR) funding to enhance arid expand t^havioral health services, a^^^^
supports to'middle .'and hjgti school students. This amendment'vviil support the program
erihancernent and e^ainsipfi^^

Funds are a'vailable in the followng accouritsTor State Fiscal Year 2023, with the authority
to adjust.budgeUlirie'items wthln the price llmilatipn through the.Budget:Office, if needed and
■justified.

05r9^92i^9265i0-338266&^ Health; anjd $6cia! .Services, pept of Health and Human.
Sva, HHS^ DiWslpn For Behavior Hea|th,\Bureau of Drug arid Alcohol, Go'vembr
Commissioh'Funds (10.0%f0die^

'State
Fiscal
Year -

Class /
Accourit' j Class'title 1  Job

. Numl>er
' Current

Budget

Increased
(Decreued)

Amount'
'Revised
Budget

2023 Qw-sopse'g '  'Welfare
Assistance

92058502
$1,206,600 $0 $1,200,000

1

•  . .1 .Subtpt^_, $1,200,000 SO $1,200,000

. TV Department e/Hnllh ond-Humah Streets'Miss^ aUjoin nmauMitiu and famtltes
■in providing opporiuniliei /t^^ciliKns toKhteixJuilih and inde/xndenee.



DocuSign Envelope ID: F2529697-09B5-42B5-9CF1-9259F39ABE73

His Exalierxry. Governof Chrislophef T. Sununu
and the HonoraMe Council
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05-95-34-3.40010-24650000 Hoalth and Socis! Services, Dept of Health and Human
Svs, HHS: New Hampshire Hospital. New Hampshire Hospital, ARPA DHHS Fiscal
Recover Funds (100% Federal Funds)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job
Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2023 074-500589
Welfare

Assistance'
00FRF602
PH9510A .

$1,100,000 $1,000,000 $2,100,000

• Subtotal $1,100,000 $1,000,000 $2,100,000

Total $2,300,000 $1,000,000 $3,300,000

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the Department is requesting to add more than 10%
of the dollar amount of the original contract. This funding will allow the t^i^rtment and
Contractor to provide additional trainings, technical assistance, and infrastructure for schools
currently participating In the Student Assistance Programs (SAP), as well as
the program in additional schools across the state. The expanded trainings vwll provide evident
basedlubstance abuse prevention and mental hearth promotion pr^rams to more studen s o
reduce risk factors that may lead to substance use disorders. This funding was not ayailable to
the Department at the lime the original contract was approved by the Executive Counai. Iirniling,
the number of schools that could participate in the SAP.

The Contractor is currenUy the facilitating organization that oversees the New Hampshire's
Student Assistance .Program training and technical assistance. As the facilttating organization

IS in the unique position to provide subawards to
behavioral health in schools, therefore the Department is requesting to provide the Contractor
vwth this funding.

Approximately 50 student assistance program and affiliated professionals will be serv^
durino Stale Fiscal Year 2023. The Department anticipates there will be 20, new sch^s
implementing SAP with additional schools determining readiness for SAP in this contract penod.

The Contractor will continue to ensure financial, operational,'technical assistance and
training to support SAPs including subcontracting with schodl distncte ofj^hsr oiganizatiops to
implement SAPs, These, funds will supplement an existing contract and allow tl^ ̂ HH«°nnai
potentially increase funding to current subawards, enter into new subawards provide additions
training, advocacy, technical assistance, and sustainability planning for.the SAPs.

The department will continue to moriitor services by reviewing monthly prpin^d
by the Contractor arid conducting quarterly site visrts to review program and financial documents.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the Department will be unable
to expand the number of SAPs across the State and will be unable to increase supfwrt and
substance misuse prevention education, needed during critical developmental years; Lack of
support services could result in higher prevalence rates of underage dnnking. drug use, misuse
and^buse of prescription medication, and.an escalation in adverse childhood expenences,
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Area served: Statewide

Source of Federal Funds: GOFERR Funds
In the event that the Federal or aher Funds become no longer available. General Funds

will not be requested to support this program.
Respectfully submitted,

hrf-

Lori A. Shiblnette '
Commissioner
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Fiscal Organization for Student Assistance Program contract is by and between
the State of New'Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and
JSI Research and lraining Institute, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on July 27-, 2022, (Item #9), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions "specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and
WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17, and Exhibit A, paragraph 1.1, the
Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and
Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to Increase the price limitation.'Or rhodlfy the scope of servicesTo support
continued delivery of these services; arid

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregdng and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$3,300,000.

2. ■ Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 1. Statement oWork. by adding Subsection 1.6.8,
to read:

1.6.8. The Contractor shall, upon Governor and Executive's Council approval of Amendment
#1 .Vovide additional funding to current subawa'rds to increase the services outlined In

.  1.7.6 and/or enter Into new subavA^rds for .new SAPs..

3. Modify Exhibit 8. Scope of Services. Section 1. Statement of Work, Subsection 1.7.6. to read:
1.7.6 The Contractor shall provide training and .technical assistance to each "subawarded

SAP to ensure'that all SAPs meet all requirements set forth in this agreement, Including
.  „ but not limited to:

1.7.6.1 Ensuring fidelity to the Project SUCCESS model.

1.7,6.2 Professional development.

1.7.6.3 • Confidentiality, privacy laws andTegulatlqns.

1:7.6.4 Mentoring.and coaching.

17.6.5 Capacity development consulting.

1.7.6.6 Restorative Justice.

■17.6.7 Advocacy'iOI.
1.7.6.8 The Power of the Personal Story.

17.6.9 42CFRPart2

1.7.6.10 Administrative support functioris, as needed.

1.7.6'.11 Data collection and evaluation.

^7.6.,12 Quality Improvement.

4. Exhibit C, Payment Terms. Section 1. to read:
1. This Agreement is funded by:

■JSI Research'and.Tcaining Inslilule, Inc. A-S-1.3 ■ ■ Contractor Initials
RFP-2023-BDAS-02-FACIL-01-A01 Page 1 of 4 .pafeiSI : '
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1.1. 64% American Rescue Plan Act, ARRA Fiscal Recovery Funds?- CFDA #TBD
FAIN #TBD.

1.2. 36% Other funds (Governor's Comrnission).

5. M<^ify Exhibit G-1 Budget by replacing It In its entirety with, Exhibit C-1 Budget Amendment #1,
which is attached hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

■■

Jsi Research and Training Inslitute, Inc. A-S-1.3 .Conlractor

RFP-2023-BDAS-02-FACIL-01-A01 Pa9e2of4 Date
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain In full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective September 30. 2022. upon Governor and Council approval, whichever
is later.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services ..

10/27/2022

Date

0«cwSlen«S »ir

I Uhfl. S-
*  CW0>BW«0>9lit-

Name: S. fox
Title: Director

10/27/2022

Date

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
OociiS^nM by:

Name: xaWirffte "n'obe rt
Title:

Director

JSI Resear^ and Training Inlslitute. Inc.

RFPT2023-BDAS-02-FACiL-01 -AO!

A.S-1.2

Page 3 of 4
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the preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Docu»gn>< by:

10/28/2022 I

Date ~
Title: Attorney

•I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE-

Date j Name:
Title:

JSI Research and Training InsUlirle, Inc. A'S-1.2

RFP-2023-BDAS-02-FACIL-01 -AOI Page 4 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Compioto one budget form for eecb budget period.

Contractor Name: JSI Research and Training Institute. Inc.

Budget Reouest for: Fiscal Organization for Student Assistance FV?
Budaet Period July 1. 2022 through June 30. 2023 fSPy23;

Indimct Dost Rate (if applicable) 3.72%

Line Item Program Cost • Funded by DHHS

1. Sdarv&Waoes
■  $192,215

2. Frinoe Benefits • - •
$90,149

3. Consultants
$5,000

4  Equipment $1

fiYal Suonlies • Educational S2.500

5Ybl SuDoSes-Lab
$0

fi trl Snnnllfts - Pharmacy ~ $0

((\) SiinnFles • Medical $0

fi.tel SuDolies Office ^  . $0

6. Travel
$7,326

7. Software
$1

8. (a) Other • Marketlno/Communlcalions $0

8. (b) Other - Education and Traininq $5,000

8. (c) Other - Other (soeclfv below)
sucontractor traininp and conference reouosfs $50,000

meetina/trainina roomrenlal $1,000

••v

Other (otease soecifvy $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $2,862,750

Total Direct Costs $3,215,942

Total Indirect Costs $84,058

TOTAL $3,300,000

'' 'ii-

5 10/27/2022
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JUL15»22ftfiil-45RCVO

Lorl A. Shlblmlle

Cesimlitiener

Kiij* S. r*.«;
Oirrvlar

StATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

bt mioy FOR be ha vtoRA i hea lth

iJOPltASANTSTREET.CONCORO.NH 03M1

60j-271.95-14 1-I00-8S1O.U5 Cxi. 9544
Fe.x: 603*27 i<4.V12 TOO A(CMt: l-t00*7.15-2964 u-«\u.dhhs.nh.go>

July 12. 2022

His Excellency. Governor Chrlslopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council ^

Stale House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for 6ehawral Health,
to enter into a contract with JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. (VC# 739507). Bow. New
Hampshire, in the amount of $2,300,000 for the imptiementation of a facilitating organization to
oversee New Hampshire's, Student Assistance Programs./wlth the opliori'to renew for up to five
(5) additional years, effective upon Governor and Council approval through June 30. 2023. 48%
Federal Funds. 52% Other Funds {Governor's Comrnission). /

Funds are available in the following account for Stale Fiscal Year 2023. upon
the availability 'and dontinued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the
authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between slate
fiscai years through (he Budget Office, if needed and justified. 1

05-95-92-9205id-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. OEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS. HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL. GOVE'RNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds)

State

Fiscal Year

Class'/

Account
Class Title Job Number- Total Amount

2023 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92058502 $i;2oO:goo.

Subtotal $1.200'000^

05-9S-94.9400lb-246SD0b HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN .SVS, HHS: NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL, NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL, ARPA
DHHS FISCAL RECOVER FUNDS (100% Federal Funds)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Budget

2023 074-500589'
Welfare

^Assistance
.  00FRF602PH9510A

$1,100,000

^Subtotal $1,100,000.

The of Hrotlh and llumon Sfvicet' Miuieii il to foin eo'>inttiniii«$ tnd
in p' roviding opporiuniliet for cilittnt ie oehltve hnitlh and indtpcndtntt.
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Page 2 of 3

Tofaf I $2.300,000

EXPLANATION

The purpose Of Ihis request is for-the provision of a Facilitating Organization ̂ (^0) to
develop and support infrastructure 8r>d provide program support io Student Assistant Programs
(SAP) across the Slate. The FO will ensure financial, operational, technical assistan^ and
training Io support S'APs including subcontracting with school districts or other organizations to
implerpent SAPs." . '

The Departrhenl's goal is to create a statewkJe. geographically diverse SAP network by
conlracliftg with an organization that can provideJechnlcal assistance and best practice on how
to effectively deliver and expand SAP services. This contract is the first step towards this eventual
outcome. •

The Contractor will contract with subawardees chosen through a competitive RFP process
facilitated by the Contractor and monliored closely by the Department. The Contractor will ensure
each subawardce will provide services, in fidelity with the Project SUCCESS model, to New
Hampshire youth in high need communities with the goal of preventing and reducing underage
drinking,high risk drinking, ̂and the use dl non-medical prescription drugs, including cpioids and
Illicit drug.ose'.

Services provided by the subawardees will include: alcohol and other drug screenings:
Individual support sessions; group support sessions; end referrals-to drug and alcohol treatment
providers when indicated by the screening. Additionally,.each subawardee will provide students
and parents vrilh targeted drug and alcohol education to improve understanding of risks
associated with the non-medical use of presaiption drugs, underage alcohol and other drug use,
and the developmental milestones and brain development of adolescents. The Contractor will
incorporate-communily level media strategie's to conduct oulreacH arxJ mariteling for the Student
Assistar^ce Programs. thus allowing the subawardees to focus on delivery of services.

Student Assistance Prograrns, statewide, will work collaboratively with the Contraclbf and
the Department to improve the quality of services delivered to students and to cdlecl data for the
purposes of data-driven decision making for school-based prevention programming. While New
Hampshire has made gains in reducing substance misuse and Increasing the perception of risk.-
(he Slate's rales ere still Wgher when compared to national rates:, 'especially as it relates to
marijuana and the use of electronic nicotine devices.

The Department wit! monitor services by:

•  Ensuring a minimum of 10 SAPs. are open and providing SAP services by
September 1. 2022'

•  Ensuring 95% of SAPs fully meel the fidelity of Project SUCCESS by June 30.2023

•  Ensuring 80% of SAP counselors are trained in Project SUCCESS by June 30,
.2023

•  Ensuring 95% of subawarded SAPs report being satisfied with the qualily of support
provided.by the facilitating organization.

't

■V. "
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V, and iho Hooo/aWe Council .

Page.3of3

The Oepartmenl selkled the Contractor through a competitive bid process using a
Request for Proposats (RFP) that was posted on the Department's website from hAarch 31. 2022
through May 6. 2022. The pepartment received one (1) response that was reviewed and scored

'' by a team ot qualified individuals. The Scoring Sheet is attached.

As referenced in Exhibit A. Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions. Section 1.
Subsection 1.1., of the atiachedagreement. the parties have the option to extend the agreement
(or up to five (5) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of. services, available
fundirig. agreement of the parties, and Governor and Couricit approval. ■;

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, students may not receive the
support and substance misuse prevention education needed durir^g criilcal developmental years.
Lack of support services could result in higher prevalence rates of underage drinking, drug use.
misuse and abuse of prescription medication, and an escalation in adverse childhood
experiences.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #J6D. FAIN TBD
In the event that the Federal or Other Funds become no longer available. General Funds

will not be requested to support this prograrh.
Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Servtccs
Division of Finance and Procurement

Bureau of Contracts and Procurement

Scoring Sheet'

Project IDS RFP.tWi-BDAS^t-FACtL ^

• Project TtU® FadntatloQ OroantatJon For SUrdtnt Aasbtince Proertm

Maximum

Points

AvaOabto

JSI Researdi & Training
(ns^e

TecnntMl

.•e'

Oevetopmem Ej^ortcnco (Ot) ss $3

AppDcalion Rodout (02) SO 2S

tmpktnerttaten (03) 20 17 «

OuaSty Ifflprevemetil (04) IS -  10

Irattwo and lecTwcsl
Assistance (OS) ;  2S 21

Sadt Office FuncUorts (08) 20 18

Proposed Ptan (07) io 37

Alecaiion'of Funds (08)' IS 14

SustaUubiCiy (09) so 20

Subtotal •Technleat .2S0 215 -

Cost

Budget (Appendb 0) 70 68

Program Stan Lbt (Appendix £} SO 30

Subtotal-Cost 100 18

TOTAL POIHTS 350 _ sts

i-j

RevtffwerName Tttto-

^ Lisa Kayward PreveiUion Coerdlnalor. OOE

^ ia Budce AdnMUrator III

' Regina Ft»nn' Proomm SpedaSsilV
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Subjecr: RFP-202i.BDAS-02«FAClb-01 (FacililaUng Organizaiion For Student Asjisiance Program)

K'Qiice: This agreement and all of its aiiachmcnts shall become public upon submission to Governor atid
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identificdlq'ihe agency and agreed to in wTiiing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The Slate of Ne\y Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I.I Slate Agency Name

New Hampshire Depanment of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address -*

■| 29 Pleasstnt Street
Concord.:NH 03301-3857 ^

1.3 Contractor Name

JSi Research &. Training Institute. Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address

501 South Street
Bow. NH 03304 .

I.S Contractor Phone
Numl^r

{603)573-3300- ■

1.6 Account Number

05.95-92-920510-
33820000 and 05-95-94-
940010-2465000

1.7 Completion Date

6/30/2023

1.8 Price Limitation

S2.300.000

1.9 .Contracting OfHcer for State Agency

Robert W. Moore, Director

I.IO State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

I.M Contractor Signature
by:

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Kather-ine Rob^nVector

1.13 Stale Agency Signature •
o*cv«ieM« tr*.

1.14 Name and Title of State AgetKy Signatory*

Katja S. Fox Director .;/•
j.

1.15 Approval by thcN.H. Depanment of Adminisirolion, Division of Personnel (ifapplicable)

By: ,v. ' Director. On: - '•

1.16 Approval by the Attorney Genera) (Form, Subsiance and E.Nccution) (i/applicable)

By: On:

1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (ifapplicable).

G&C Item number; G&C Meeting bate:

Page l_of4 ;' pS- ,
Coniracior Ininals.v

Datc77n77U77;
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFO'RM ED. The Siaic of New
Hnmpshire. acting through thc-ogency idemified in block I.I
("State"), cngagcj contractor identified in block 1.3
("Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perforhi, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more panictilarly
described in'the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services")-

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agrecnicni to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hercundcr. shall
bccorrtc'efTeciivc on the date the Oovenior aiid Executive
Council approve'this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17.
-unless no such approval is reqiiired.-in which case (he .Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreentcnt is signed by
the Slate Agency as sh6>vn in block 1.13 ("EfTcctivc Date' ).
3.2 (f the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the EfTcctive Date shall be performed at the sole risk'of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agrecincni docs not bcconte
effective, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including • without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contrador for any costs incused or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
NoiNviihstanding, any provision of this Agreemehi to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hcreundcr, including,
wiilioul limitation, the continuance of paytncnts hcreundcr, arc
cohiir^geni upon tl«'availability arid continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
"aciioti that reduces,- eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or avaijabllity of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B. in whole or in
pan. In no event" shall the State be .liable for any payments
hcreundcr In excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if evcr,-and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this.Agreement immediately upon
giUng the Conlrncior" notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
occouni' or source to the Account itJcntified" in block 1.6 in the
event funds in that Account arc reduced or uiiavallable.

5. contract price/price limitation/
PAYMENT. ,
5; I The contract ̂ Ice, method of payment, and terms ofpayment
arc identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the

' only and 'lhc complete rcimbursemeni to ihc Contractor for all
expenses','of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The Slate reserves the right to offset from ohy;omouni$
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated onxsunts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:?-c or any other provision of law.
5:4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding urK.xpwted circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hcreundcr. e.xcccd the Price Liniiioiion set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTrOR WITH LAWS
and regulations/ equal employment ■
OPPORTUNltV.
6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply uiih all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal.,state, county or. municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States^ (he Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with nriy rules, regulations and guidelines as (he
State or the United Siaici issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall 'also comply with all applicable intdlcctuol
property laws.
6.2 During the term of this AgrecnKni. the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants "for cmplo)meni
because of race, co lor. ,religion, crccd, age, sex. hartdicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimiiiation.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the Stale or United States
access to any of the Cont ractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of oscertetning compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms aitd conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEU

7.1 The Coniracior shall at its own expense pravide oil personnel
necessary to perform the.Services. The Contractor warratits that
all personnel engaged in the Services shajl be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly, licensed and
othcr>vise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in .writing; during the icrrh of
this Agreeiitem. and for a.period of six (6) months after"the
Completion pate in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not pcrruit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with^^whom it is engaged in & combined efTort to
perform the SeK-ices to hirei any person who is a State employee
or official, 'wito is maicriaUy involved in tlic ̂ procuremejit,
administration or performance of (his Agreement. This
provision Shall survive termination of.ihts Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9. or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning Ihc iiiterprelation of, this Agrcenicnt, the
Comrecil.ng Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

Page 2 of 4
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8. EVENT OF pEfAULT/REMEpiES.
8.1 Any one or more of Ihc following acis or omissions of ihc
Contracior shall consiiiuie an evcrii of defauli hcreiindcr (•'Evcni
ofOefauli"):
8.1.1 failure to per"fom> the Services saiisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submii any rcpon required hereundcr; and/or
■ 8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
'8.2 Upon the occurrence of any ENxni of Default, the State may
take any one. or more, or all. of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Dcfsull and requiring ii to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
lisrminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a wrinen notice specifying the Event of
Default and Sittspcnding all payments to be made under this
Agrcemcnfand ordering that the portion of the contract price

. \vhich would othcnvisc accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
detemrines that the Contractor has cured .the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contracior;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a wTiiien notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contrtetor.any damages the Sinte suffers by reason of
any Event ofDcfauli; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a wTitten notice specifying the Event of
Default, 'treat the Agreement -as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hercofafler
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver o.f its rights with
regard, to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Defauli shall
be deemed a waiver (>f the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of

- Defauli on the part of the Contractor.

S.TERhllNATlON.

9.1 Not^v'thstonding paragraph 8. the State may. at its sole
discrciion. terminate the Agreement for any reason, In whole or
in pan. by thirty (30) days Nvritten tKiilce to the Contracior ihai
the Stale is exercising its option to icrminaic the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early "termination of this Agreement for
any reason-other than .the completion .of the Scr\'ices. the
Coritractor shall, at the iSiaie's discretion, deliver to 'the
ConiractingbfTicer. not later than fifteen (15) da^ after the date
of tcfTninatioh, a report ("Termination Repbrt") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contracfpricc eamed^^p
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, antJ number of copies of the Termination Report slial!
bcidcnticol'to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B.. In addition, at ihe^Sioie's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 13 days of notice of early termlnaiion. develop and

Page

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services uhder the
Agreement.

10. data/access/confidentialitv/
PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtainctJ during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to. all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, coriipuier printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papcrt, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which hw been received from
the State or purchased ̂ vith funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreen)cni. shall be the properT>' of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confideniinliiy of data shall be governed byN.H. RSA
chapter 9 l.-.A or other exist ing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE, jii the
performance of this .Agreement the Contractor is'in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor on
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or menibers shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, wort:ers' con»pensation or
other emoluments provided by the' Siate io its employees.

W. ASSICNMENT/DELECATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or oihenvise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least .fifteen (IS) days prior to
the assignment, and a wrincn consent of the State. For purposes

.of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall .constitute
assignment. 'Change ,of Control" means (a) merger.
corlsolidation,.or a iransaciibn or series of related transactions m
which a third part)', together with its afTilialcs, bccontcs the
direct Of indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting'shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.
12.2 None of the Services shall be siibcomrectcd by the
Contractor without prior yvritien notice and consent of the Slate.-
The State is eiiiiilcd id copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontraci or an assignment agreement to which it is not a.
party. ...

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise cxernpied by low,
the Contractor shalLindemnify and hold harmless the State, its
olTlccrs and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or o'thcr claims asserted against
the State, its olticcrs or employees, which arise out of (or ̂ vhich
may be claimed to arise out ol) the acts or omisircmWr ihc
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'CofMractor. or subcontracjors. including but not limiicd to the
'negligence, reckless or intcniional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Conlrocior arising under
this paragraph )i Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemH to constitute a waiver ofihe sovereign
immunity of the Slate, which immunity is hereby reser\'ed to the

-.State. This covenant "in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreernent.

14. insurance! I
14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole ̂ expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in .force, -and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and moiniain in force, the
foliow-ing insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance agoinsi all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and S2.000.000 aggregate
or excess: and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in on amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by ihc N.H. Depanmcni of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State ofNcw Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
ideniined in block J.9. or his or her successor, a ceftificmcfs) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agrccnicni.
Ccnlraciorshailalso furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, cenir»CBie($) of insurance
for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreernent no .

'later than ten (10) days prior to the c.xpiration date of ciich
insurance policy. The cenificatets) of insurance and any

. .renewals thereof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS* COMPENSATION. .
15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
.from, the requircn>cnis of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A (' Workers_
Co/iipensaiiori ").
1 S.2 To the extent the Contractor Is subject to ihe requifcntehts
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A. Contractor shall maintain, and.
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and moinloin,
.paymcnl. of Workers' Compensation in "connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agrccmeiii. Thc'Coniraclor shall furnish the Conirociing Officer
idctitificd in block 1.9. or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N-H. RSA chapter
281-A end any applicable renewal($) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated Kercm by reference. The State
shall rx>i be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other<cloim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
vHiich'might arise under applicable State-of New Hampshire
Workers" Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Ag'ccmeni.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by ccrtined mail, postage prepaid, in'a United States
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. amendment. This Agreement may be ameMed, waived
or discharged only by an in$trun»cnt in writing signed by the
pities hereto and only after approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge.by the Governor and E.vecutive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law. rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agrccmcm shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hantpshire. and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and ilieir respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the panics to express their niuiiial intent^ and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and.
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
e.sclusive jurisdiciion thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a connici
between the tcnnsbfihis P-3? form fas modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or atmchmenls and omendmcm thereof, the Icrnts of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
bcitcfit any third parties, aiid this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings ihroughout the Agreement are
for. reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to e.xplain. ntodify. amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modif)ing
provisions set forth in Ihe oiiached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference. '

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event anyofthc provisions of this
Agreemem are held by a court of competent'jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law. ihc remaining provisions of
this Agreement \vill remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which tuay be
executed in a number of-counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire, agreement aiid"
understanding-between the parties, and supersedes all pridr
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter-
hereof.

i
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Facilitating Organization For Student Assistance Program

EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Aqreement.Provisions

1. Revisions to Form P-.37. Genera) Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3. Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The parlies may extend the Agreement for up five (5) additional years
froni the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of

:  services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.2. Paragraph 12. Assignment/Deiegatlon/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contraclor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with .those conditions. The Contractor shall have written"

*  agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to l3e performed,
and if applicable, a Business Associate. Agreement in accordance with
the Health Insurance Portabilily and Accountability Act! Written
agreements shall specify how corrective action shall be managed. The
Contractor shall manage the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing
basis and take corrective action as necessary. The Contractor shall
annually p/ovide the Stale with a list of all subcontractors provided for
under this Agreement and notify the State of any inadequate
subcontractor performance.

■
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Facilitating Organization for Student Assistance Program

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

'  1.1. Utilizing its Center of Excellence on Addiction, the Contractor shall act as a
-  Facilitating Organization .(FO) .to develop and support infrastructure .and

provide program support to Student Assistance Programs (SAP) across the
Slate. The FO shall provide financial, operational, technical assistance and
traihing'to suppprt'SAPs, including subcontracting with school-districts or other
organizations to implement SAPs.

1.2. The Contractor shall ensure services are available statewide.

1.3. For the purposes of this Agreement, all references todays shall mean business
days, excluding state and federal holidays.

1.4. The Contractor shall distribute funding in accordance with all applicable state
and federal laws and regulations, via a competitive bidding process. The
Contractor, In collaboration with the Department, will develop and conduct the
competitive bid process including a funding rubric for school districts and other
organizations to apply to Implement SAPs based on the Project SUCCESS
model in identified' NH middle and high schools including:

1.4.1. Universal or School Wide Prevention Strategies;

1.4.2. Prevention Curriculum Based Education in a minimum of two (2)
grade leyels (e.g. seventh grade and ninth grade);

1.4.'3. Using the Global Appraisal of Individual Needs-Short-Screener
(GAIN-SS) to. screen students for behavioral health issues who are
referred to the program;

1.4.4. /Using the screening results to assign students to Individual or group
counseling sessions;

1.4.5. Providing parent education and consultation oh substance misuse'
and mental health issues relative to adolescents; and

1.4.6. . Providing consultation to school staff and administration as heeded.

1.5. The Contractor shall ensure the Department approves grant applications and
agreements prior to awardl

1.6. SAP Request for Applications Requirements

i: ' 1.6.1. The Contractor shall enter into subaward agreements with a minimum
.  of 10 (ten) school districts wilhih 60 (sixty) days of the effective date

of the Agreement, to support the provision of quality SAP within.NH.
The Contractor shall: '

1.6.1.1. Develop a SAP Request for Applications (RFA).that includes,
but is not limited to:

^  I ̂
RFp.2023:eDASW.FACJl.-Ol ConlfBC>of.lhi>ial» ^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Facilitating Organization for Student Assistance Program

'  ' EXHIBIT B

Region RFA applicant shall serve,

s' 1.6.1.1.2. Target population.

1.6.1.1.3. Number of students.

T6.1.1.4. Name of school district.

1.6.1.1.5. Number of middle schools where SAP shall be
Implemented.

1.6.1.1.6. Number of high schools where SAP shall be
irnplernenied.

1.6.1.1.7. Demonstration of need for SAP in applicant's
district supported by relevant local data.

1.6.1.'1.8. Goals of SAP implementation.

.  1.6.1.2. Develop a SAP Program Implementation Readiness
Assessment. The Contractor shall,review applicants':

'  1.6.1.2.1. * Experience working with the target population;

1.6.1.2.2. School districts' current approach for substance
use prevention and rtiehtal wellness; ..

i;6.1.2.3. Capacity to implement-the SAP program with
fidelity to Project SUCCESS;

.  1.6.1.2.4. Commitment to completing the deliverables;

1.6.1.2.5. Relationships with:

T6.1.2.5.1. Community-based organizations (CBOs);

1.6.1.2.5.2. The Substance Misuse Prevention Coordinator in,;the
local Regional Public Health Network;

1.6.1.2.5.3. Local coalitions; and

1.6.1 .'2.5.4. Other prevention and mental health organizations.
16 13. Ensure commitment to a suslainability team of the applicants

applying to the SAP RFA. Applicants' sustainabitity team
shall:

1.6.1.3.1. Include, at minimum:

1.6.1.3.1.-1. One administrator.
1.6.1.-3.1.2. One parent.

1.6.1.3.1.3. One teacher or guidance counselor.
1.6.1.3.1.4. ' Representative from the regional Social .ModelProgram (SMP). or local coalition, or Alcohol Tobacco

— M
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.New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Facilitating Organization for Student Assistance Program

EXHIBIT B

and Other Drugs service providing organization
... (ATOD).:

1.6.1.3.1.5. SAP Counselor.

1.6.1.4. • Be required to meet quarterly with SAP programs to:

1.6.1.4.1.,. Review data.

1.6.1:4.2. Make suggestions fpr quality improvement.

1.6.1.4.2.1. Develop a sustainability plan that considers:
1.6.1.4.2.1.1. Organizational capacity.

1.6!i.4.2.1.2..Environmental supports.

1.6.1.4.2.1.3. Poirtical supports and partnerships:
1.6.1.4.2.1.4.Communicationsand public relations.

1.6.1.4.2.1.5. Program evaluations.

1.6.1.4.2.1.6. Funding.

1.6.1.4.2.1.7.Securing offuture funding.

1.6.1.4.2.2. Ensure the SAP is reporting on adherence to.
sustainability plan.

1.6.1.5. Request and ensure a signed letter of commitment, is
received from school district superintendent, that includes,
but is not limited to:

*  1.6.1.5.1. Commitment supporting SAP implementation.
with fidelity including an outline of the core
components of SAP.

1.6.1.5.2. Commitment supporting SAP implementation
with fidelity.from the organization leading the
SAP implementation.

I.'e.1.5.3. Designated direct report staff members within
the schooi district.

1.6.1.5.4: A communication plan to handle Issues of
concern or grievances.

1.6.-1.5.5. Assurance that SAP Counselor(s) will have
access to:

1.6.1.5'.5.1. A private physical space within the school to conduct
screenings with mdividuals or groups.

V-; 1.6.1.5.5.2. Laptops.

f.6.1.5.5:3. Desks.

RFP-2023-BbAS4)2-FACll.O1 ComfKlor Inlliab
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New Hampshire Department of Heallh and Human Services
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EXHIBIT B

1.6.1.5.5.4. Chairs.

1.6.1.5.5.5. Telephones. '■

1.6.1.5.5.6. Seating.
1.6.1.5.6. Student data such as class schedule ^and

guardian contact information.
..V

1.6.1.5.7. Acknowledgement that sustainability must be a
consideration in every step to the process.

1.6.1.5.8. Commitment to aljowing for participation In the
SAP Community of Practice and other
professional developnient progr^ams. ■

1.6.1.5.9. Request a detailed budget that includes:

1.6.1.5.9.1. Percent of cash or in-kind match that the school district
will provide:

u  1.6T .5.9.2. An explanation of what funding sources and resources
make up the in-kind match, if applicable; .

1.6.1.5.10. A proposed staffing plan, that includes:

1.6.1.5.10.1. The number of hours a week and year dedicated to the .
Student Assistance Program in each proposed middle
or high school;

'  1.6.1.5.10.2. Percentage of hourly-rales to be covered by the
funding request;

1.6.1.5.10.3. The Student Assistance Counselor educatiori -and
experience; and

1.6.1.5.10.4. School staff members that will be part ofthe SAP Team
in addition to the Counselor.

■  1.6.2. • The*'Contractor shall ensure the applicatiori is distributed and
available istat'ewlde.

1.6.3. The Contractor shall, in collaboration with the Department, develop
and implement a scoring rubric to assess SAP applicants.

1.6.4. The Contractor shall, in collaboration'with the Departrtient, develop" a
■  team to assess and review the SAP applicants. The Contractor shall;

1 ;6.4.1. Ensure that the scoring team is comprised with no sitting staff
members of SAP programs in effect.

1.6.5. The Contractor shall provide a copy of eac.h executed SAP subaward
to the Department within five (5) business days of.the effective date
of the subaward agreement.

RFP.2023-BOAS-O2-FACIL-OI CoiMr»cloi Inlilals
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1.5.6. The Contraclor shall modify current subwards as required or enter
into new subawards for new SAps that are located in underserv.ed
geographic regions, as approved by the Department.

1.6.7. The Contractor shall comply with applicable federal and state
-regulations and laws, including but not limited to. RSA-21:G and 2
CFR 200. '

1.7. Responsibilities of Facilitating Organization in-Subawardee Oversight
1.7.1. The Contractor shall adhere to standards provided by the Department

to ensure subaward agreements are managed at an acceptable level,
including but not limited to frequency and content of programmatic
and financial reviews either on-site or remotely..

1.7.2. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department's evaluation
pfOvideMo develop and implement an evaluation plan for SAPs and
ensure its selected methodology is adhered to by subawarded SAPs.

1.7.3. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department on a quality
assurance and improvement plan of SAPs.

1.7;4'. The Contractor shall provide logistical and other support, as directed
by the Department, to facilitate a Corrimunity of Practice^hat allows
SAP staff to establish and strengthen cooperation, colla^raiion and

,  Informal mentoring among SAPs'. The Contractor shall:

1.7.4.1. Organize regular ongoing meetings of the SAF^ Community
of Practice;

1.7.4.2. Ensure meetings are advertised to all SAPs and are
accessible;' "■

1.7.4.3. Increase best practice knowledge relative to effective SAP
services with Fidelity tothe Project SUCCESS model;

1.7.4.4. Develop and share culturally competent SAP strategies and
• materials; '

1.7.4.5. Foster and grow implementation of sustalnabillty strategies;
1.7.4.6. Build collegiality and informal mentoring among those

delivering SAP services; and.

1.7.4.7. Support a network of SAP professionals throughout New
Hampshire. ::t

1.7.5. The Contraclor shall provide Technical Assistance and Training
(TA/T) and ensure SAP staff adhere to all applicable laws, including
but not limited to the Family Educational Rights and .Privacy Act
(FERPA),the Health insurarice Pgrtability and Accountability Act
(HIPPA), and 42 CFR Part 2, and establish confidentiality protouols
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>■ for students, school staff, administrators, and parents.

'  1.7.6. The Contractor shall provide.training and technical assistance to each
subawarded SAP to ensure that alt SAPs meet all requirements set
forth in this agreement, including but not limited to:.

v.; 1.7.6.1. Ensuring Tidelity to the Project SUCCESS model.
1.7.6.2. Professional development.

1.7.6;3. Confidentiality, privacy laws and regulations.

1.7.6.^. Mentoring and coaching.
.'.v.; 1.7.6.5. Capacity development consulting. ' ;

1.7.6.6. ■ Administrative support functions,.as needed.
1.7.6.7. ' Data collection and evaluation.

1.7.6.8. Quality improvement.
1.7.7. The Contractor shall provide TA/T to SAP counselors in the Project

SUCCESS model and the administration of the GAIN-SS with support
from the Department's Training and Technical Assistance providers.

1.7.8. The Contractor shall provide TA/T to SAP to identify services that may
be biilable to Medtcaid. Medicare; or private, insurance: y

1.7.9. The Contractor shall provide TA/T to school Superintendents and
building administrators on the internal organizational structure
needed to support SAP staff. The Contractor'shaH ensure staff are
integrated within the school system and have access.toj

1.7.9.1. A designated direct report staff member within the'^
subawarded school district or organization;'

1.7.9.2. A private physical space within the school to conduct
screening, individual and group sessions;

1.7.9.3. At a minimum, laptops, -desks, phairs, telephones, and.
seating equipment for students and parents; and

1.7.9.4.. A communication plan to handle issues of concern or
grievances. " . •'

1,7-10. The Cqntraclor shall provide TA to SAP subawardees who have staff
with requirements of supervision to rheet licensure on how to access
such supervision. .

1.7:11. The Contractor shall have at a minimum one (1) staff member located
".s . in New Hampshire-to provide in-pefson TA/T of consultation at-a

rnlnimum of one ('1) work day a month or niore frequently as ne.eded.

1.7.12. The Contractor shall work with each SAP to ensure servii^""ige
RFP-2023-BOAS-02-FACII-<I1 ' Contisdor (niUaJs
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available and can be sustained,beyond availability of Department
funding.

1.7.13. The Contractor shall collect the required data from the SAP
counselors and and enter the data Iri the Department approved
database on a monthly basis. The Contractor shall:

1.7.13.1. Provide the Department with aggregate monthly sumrtiary
"  program reports.'The requi/ed data will include but is hot

limited to;

1.7.13.1.1. Demographics of individuals served by strategy: .

1.7.13.1.1.1. Gender;

1.7.13.1.l.i2. 'Age; ' f
1.7.13.1.1.3. Race;

"  . 1.7.13.1.1:4. Ethnicity; and

' 1.7.13.1.1.5. Individual or Family Military Status;

1.7.13.1.1.6. Dosage and frequency of individual participation in
Individual and group sessions;

1.7.13.1.1.7. Aggregate GAIN-SS screening results;

1.7.13.1.1.8. Number and type of referral to internal or external
behavioral health resources.or programs; and

1.7.13.1.1.9. Number and type of universal activities, parent
education and consultation and school staff and
administration.

1.7.14. The Contractor shall provide program management and overslghl of
~  the SAPs as well as implement a quality improvement process

v  developed in collaboration with the Department.

1.7.15. The Contractor shall provide a Continuity of Opera'tions Plan (COOP)
to ensure the essential functions of the program continue in.the event
of a disruption of normal operations. The COOP must be submitted to

*  and approved by the Department within 30 days of the Agreement-
effective date.

1.7.16. BackgroundOhecks and Attestations

1.7.16.1. The Contractorshall require the sub-awardees conduct
criminal background checks, at its own' expense, and not
utilize any staff. " including subcontractors, to fulfill the
obligations of the.Contract who have been convicted of any
crime of .dishonesty, includirig but not lirni.ted to crirriinal

'  '■ fraud, Of dhefwlse convicted of any felony or misdem^nor
RFP-2023-BDAS-02-FACIL-01 ConUBClof
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offense for which incarceration for. up to 1 year is an
«: authorized penalty. The Contractor 'shall, prornote and

maintain an awareness of the importance of securing the
State's information arhong the Contractor's employees and
agents.

v  1.7.16.2. The Contractor agrees It will require sub-awardees initiate a
criminal background check re- investigation of all workforce

r  assigned to this Agreement every five years. The five-year

period will be based on the date of the last Criminal
Background Check conducted by the Contractor or its Agent.

1.7.16.3. The Contractor must ensure any staff and/or volunteers
involved in delivering services sign an attestation agreeing to
access, view, store, and discuss Confidential Data in

.  accordance with federal and state laws and regulations and
the Department's Exhibit K.'The Contractor musiensure said
individuals have a justifiable business need to access
confidential data. The Contractor must provide attestations
upon Department request. ,

1.7.16.4. Upon request, the Contractor must allow the Depar^enl lo
conduct a Privacy Impact Assessment (PIA) of Its system If

"  v; Personally Identifiable Information (PII) is collected,-..used,
accessed, shared, or stored. To conduct the* PIA the
Contractor must provide the Department access to
applicable systems and documentation sufficient to allow the
Department to assess, at minimurm, the following:.

1.7.16.4.1. How PII is gathered and stored;

1.7.16.4.2. Who will have access to PII;

1.7.16.4.3. ■ How PII will be used In the system; . k;

1.7..16.4.4. . How individual consenl'will be achieved and revoked; and

1.7.16.4.5. Privacy practices.

1.7.16.5. The Department may conduct follow-up PIAs in the event
there are either significant process changes or riew
technologies impacting the collection, processmg or storage
of PII.

1.7.17. . Website and Spc.ial Media

1.7.17.1. The Contractor agrees that if performance of services on
behalf of the Department involve using social media or a
website for marketing to solicit information of individuals,^or
Confidential data, the Contractor must work .vi^wthe

RFP-2023-WA$-02-FACIL-01 Coniraclor Iriiiali.;
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Department's Communications Bureau to ensure that any
.  social media or website designed, createdi or managed on •

behalf of the Department meets all of the Department's and
NH Department of Information Technology's website and
social media requirernents and policies.

17.17.2. The Contractor agrees protected health information (PHI),
personal Information (PI), or other confidential information
solicited either by social media or the website maintained.

■ ^ ' stored' or captured shall not be further disclosed unless
expressly provided in the Agreement. The solicitation or

■' disclosure of PHI, PI, or other conhdential infoxrnation shall
be subject to the Information Security Requirements Exhibit,
the Business Associates Agreement Exhibit and all
applicable state rules and slate and federal' law. Unless
specifically required by the Agreerhent and unless clear
notice Is provided to users of the website 'or social media, the
Coritractor agrees that site visitation will not be tracked,

T; disclosed or used for website or social media analytics or
marketing.

1.7.18. The Contractor shall provide baseline data for each SAP location
within 90 days of the Agreement effective dale to the Department, ,
Baseline data must include:

1.7.18.1. Number of staff at each SAP with conienl experts idenlified.
including but nol.limited to:

1.7.18.1.1. Bachelor of Social Work.

1.7.18.1.2. Licensed Social Worker.
1.7.18.1.3. Masterof Social Work.

:f 1.7.18.1.4. Licensed.Alcohol and Drug Counselor.. ;;;
1.7.18.1.5. Master Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor.
1.7.18.1.fe. Psychologist.
1.7.18.1.7. Psychiatrist.

1.7.18.1.8. Certified Recovery Support Worker.

1.7.18.r.9. Staffing plan at location of SAP including direcf reporting'
.delineations and name of Superintendent;

1.7;i8.1.10. School location, the Contractor shall identify:
1.7.18.1.10.1. Mfschool is a rhiddle school or high school; .-C-oi
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1.7.18.1.10.3. Total number of students per school.

1.7.10.1.10.4. -■ Annual itemized budget;

■1.7.18.1.10.5. Funding sources or contracts other than this
Agreement;

1.7.18.1.10.6. '^Percentage of staff and volunteers that have been
trained in Project SUCCESS; and

1.7.18.1.10.7. -Status of an organizational sustainabllity plan.

1.7.19. The Contractor stiali support the ability of each_SAP io implement and
'  . sustain the program(s) which includes, but is not limited to: :•

1.7.19.1. Providing technical assistance on engaging stakeholders for
.  ensuring SAP financial viability and future suslainability;

1.7.19.2. Assisting with marketing and promotion of the program; and
1.7.19.3. Education and advocacy for local, stale and federal

programs to sustain and/or expand SAP.
,  1.7.20. The Contractor shall activ^ely promote the availability, purpose, and

value of SAPs across New Hampshire. The Cdntractor must ensure^
promotional activities include, but are not limited to: .

1.7.20.1. Developing promotional materials approved by the
Department; '

>  1.7.20.2. Disseminating promotional and marketing materials on a
variety of platforms including websites, social media,
television and radio as approved by the Departrnent;

1.7.20.3. Publishing a quarterly e-newsletter;,and
1.7.20.4. Presenting at local, state and national nieetings, workshops

-v: and conferences with or without the Department and as
•' approved by the Department.

1.7.21., The Contractor shall,,in collaboration w/ith the Department, develop.a
program incubator model in order to increase iridependence from
Department funds and sustainability of existing SAP programs.

1,7.22. The Contractor must subrnit subawarded SAP' invoices to the
Department on-a monthly basis, in accordance with Exhibit C of this
Agreement.

, 1.7.23. The Contractor must provide TA/T to SAP to Identify services that may
be bjjlable "to Medicaid, Medicare, or private insurance.

1.7.24. The Contractor shall manage the finances and hurhan resourcesrequirements of the SAP subawardees relative to their dutj^^^
RFP-2023-B0AS^^FACIL-0i :• Conlrw:iof.lrtli«l»__
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respo'nsibiilities. The.Contractor shall: '

1.7.24.1. Ensure proper use of financial da.ta.

1.7.24.2. Approve all,costs charged to specific projects for each SAP.

1.7.24.3. Review monthly financial reports for accuracy.

1.8. The Contractor shall participate in meetings with the Department on a monthly
basis, or as otherwise requested by the Department.

1.9. The. Contractor shall ensure staff, participate in required training on Project-
SUCCESS, Technical Assistance, and use of the GAIN-SS training tool as.
required by the Department,-which the Deparlhnent will allow invoice for and
provide connection to training evaluators. ■ '

1.10. Reporting-

i.10.1. The Contractor shall submit monthly
ensure adherence to contract provisions and maintaining fidelity to
the Project SUCCESS model which include, but are hot limited to:

1.10.1.1. Collecting data from each subawardee and aggregating the
data to send to the Department, which may include but is not
limited to:

1.-10.i.1.1. Youth Risk Behavior Survey.
•I .

r., 1.10.1.1.2. National Survey oh Drug Use and Health.

1.10.1.1.3. Behavioral Risk Factor Surveillance Survey.

v, 1.10,1.1.4. NH County Health Rankings.

1 .'10,2. The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and metrics
to the Oepartment.in a format specified by the Department.

■ 1.10.3. The Contractor shall provide quarterly reports to the Department that
contain: ,

1.10.3.1. Updates on current status for each SAP under subaward;

1.10.3.2. Number of SAPs pending implementation of services, reason
for delay in implementation, and plan to begin
implementation.

1.10.3.3. Number of SAPs who are implernenting SAP services.

1.10.3.4. Number of and types of training implemented each quarter.

'  1.10.3°.5. Number of and types of technicai assistance provided each
q'uarter.

RFP.2023-BOAS-02-FACIL-01 Conlr»c«or InjlUU
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1.10.3.6. Summary narrative of SAP Communities of Practice and
other SAP specific meetings.

1.10.3.7. Activities undertaken to promote the availability, purpose .and
va.lue of SAPS.

1.10.3.8. Programmatic highlights such as success of the SAP
programs as determined by the Selected Vendor.

1.10.3.9. key findings from evaluation of participant and programmatic
.  data, including but not limited to demographic and program

satisfaction data.

1..10.il0.Recommendations for program improvement. •:

1.10.3.11.Monthly aggregate data reports as defined in Subparagraph
'  1.10.1.

1.10.3.12;Monthly financial Invoices with supporting documentation.

1.10.4. The Contractor must provide any additional data as requested by the
Department in a fprmat specified by the Departrnenl.

1.11. Performance Measures , •

■  1.11.1. The Department will monitor Contractor performance by ensuring:

1.11.1 .-1. A minimum of 10 SAPs are open and providing SAP services •
by September 1.2022;

1.11.1.2. 95% of SAPs fully meet the fidelity of Project SUCCESS by
June 30.2023; - ^ -

1.11.1.3. 80% of SAP counselors are trained in Project SUCCESS by
June 30.2023; and

1.11.1.4. 95% of subawarded SAPs report being satisfied with the
quality of support provided by the Facililatirig Organization.

2. Exhibits Incorporated ^

2.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in
compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit I. Business Associate Agreement, which
' has been executed by the parlies.

2.2. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
.accordance with sthe terms of Exhibit K. DHHS ̂ Information Security
Requirements.

2.3. The Cohtraclor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K. which are afia^d
RFP-2023-BDAS-02-FACIt-0l r.- ContfaUOf IniUall
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,

"  hereto and incorp.oraled by reference herein. ■

3, AdditionalTerms

3.1; Impacts .Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes
3.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future slate or federal

legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

3.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance; Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

3.2.1. The Contractor shall submit, within ten (10) days of the Agreement
Effective Date, a detailed description of the communication access
and language assistance services to be provided to ensure
meaningful access to programs and/or services to individuals with
limited English proficiency; individuals who are deaf or have hearing
lois; individuals who are blind or have low vision; and individuals who
have speech challenges. • ' >

3.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

3.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement shall include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under an
Conlmct with the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided iri part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as vvere available or

' .ir required, e.g.. the United States Department of Health and Human
Services:"

3.3.2. All materials,produced of purchased under the Agreement shall have
prior approval from the Department before printing, 'production,
.distribution or use.

3.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright" ownership for any and all
original malerials produced, including, but not limited to:^ .

3.3.3.1." Brochures.

3.3.3.2. Resource directories. >
i»i

3.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

0.3.3.4. Posters.

V  3'.3.3.5. Reports. ••
v" y""®'

3.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced ujid^he
RFP.202S-BOAS^2.FACIL-01 Coru™<Uor iniiWs
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Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

4. Records

4.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limlted to;

4.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other.expenses-incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all Income received

•  or collected by the Contractor.

4.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses, arid which are acceptable to the Department, and
■to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by

. the Department.

•  ' 4.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder; the
Department, the United-States Department of Health and Human Seryices. and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department

"•' of the maximum number of units provided for in the Agreement and upon
payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Agreement and all the obligations

r  of the parlies hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terrris of the
. Agreement are to be performed after the end of the term of this Agreement

'  ' and/or survive the termination of the Agreement) shall terminate, provided'
however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report thepepartment
shall disallow, any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the
Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

-N
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Payment Terms-. •

This Agreement is funded by:

1.1.48% American Rescue Plan Act, ARPA Fiscal Recovery Funds, CFpA
#TBD FAIN #TBD.

1.2. 52% Other funds.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement the Department has identified:

' ■ 2.1. The Contractor as a Subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR §200:331.

2.2. The Agreement as NON-R&D, in accordance with 2 CFR §200.332.

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfiNrnent of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with

w  the approved line items, as specified in Exhibits C-1 ..Budget.

4.. The Contractor shall: ?

4.1. .Submit subawarded SAP invoices to the Departrinenton a rhonthly basis
in a format approved by the Department that rhay be combined in one
invoice to account for all subawarded SAPs.

4.2. Collaborate with the Department to rectify any issues related to the
-invoices. -•

■ 4:3. , Retain supporting documentation that may include, but is hot limited to,
time sheets, payrdil records, receipts for purchases, and proof of
.'expenditures, as applicable, to ensure compliance in the event of a
potential audit.

5. The Contractor shall submit an invoice with supporting documentation to the
Departrrient no later than the twentieth (20^) working day of the rrionth following
the month in which the services were provided. The Contractor shall ensure
each Invoice:

'5.1.. Includes the Contractor's Vendor Number issued upon registering with
Nevy Hampshire Department of Administrative Services.

5.2- Is subrnitted in a form that is provided by or otherwise acceptable to the
Deparlment.

5.3. Identifies and requests payment for allowable costs incurred in the
previous month.

5.4. Ihcludes supporting documentation of allowable costs wi.th each invoice
that may include, but are not limited to, time sheets, payrbil records,
receipts for purchases, and.proofof expenditures, as applicable.

^ 5.5. Proyldelnvbices for each sub-contractor, identified in this Agreement, in
a torrnat approved by the Departrfieht.

'  - 1
RFP-2023-BOAS-02-FACJL-01 ConlraclCK
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EXHIBIT C

5.5.1. The Department has the right'to request from the contractor
supporting documentation of allowable co.sts, from each sub-

■.? contractor that may include, but is not limited to. time sheets.
payroll records, receipts for - purchases, and proof of
expenditures, as applicable.

5.6. Ensure timesheets and/or time cards subrhitted support the hours
employees worked for wages reported under this contract'in accordance
with:'

5.6.1. Per 45 CFR Part 75.430(l){1) Charges to Federal awards for
salaries and wages must-be based on records that accurately
reflect the work performed.

. 5.6.2. Attestation and time tracking templates, which a(e available to
the Department upon request.

5.7.. Is completed, dated and returned to the Departrhent with the supporting
documentation for allowable expenses to initiate payment.

5.8. Is assigned an electronic signature, includes supporting documentation,
and is emailed to dhhs.invoicesforconlracts@dhhs.nh.gov or mailed to:

Program f^anager ,
Department of Health and Human Services
105 Pleasant Street

. Concord, NH 03301 ' ■

6. The Department shall make payrhents to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
■bf receipt of- each invoice and supporting documentation for authorized
expenses, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice.

7. The final invoice and supporting documentation for authorized expenses shall
be due to the Department no later than forty ,(40) days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7
Comple|ion Date.

s8,: . Notwithstariding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37. .changes
limited to. adjusting; amounts within the price limitation and . adjusting.

- .encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made .by written agreemerit of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.
Audits

9.1. The' Contractor must email an annual audit lo dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov If
any of the foljowing con^ditions exist:

RFP-2023.BDAS-02-FACIl-Or

JSI Research & Training Inslltvie. Inc.'

Conlractor IfJtials ^
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Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

9.1.2. Condition 6 - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
. requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

9.1.3. Condition.C - The Contractor is a public company and required,
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit. - '

9.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual Single
Audit perfonned by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA)
to .dhhs.act(g'dhhs.nh.gov within 120 days after 'the close of Ihe
Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in accordarlce with the
requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart P of the Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal awards. ^

9.2.1. The Contractor shall submit a copy of any. Single Audit findings
and any associated corrective action plans. The Contractor
shall s.ubmit quarterly progress repprts on the status of
Implementation of the corrective action plan.

9.3.. If, Condition 6 or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an,
'  annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120

days after the-close of the Coritractor's fiscal year.

9.4. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Agreement, it is understood and agreed by the Cpntractor that the^
Coritractor shall be held liable for ariy'slate or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department ail! payments made under the
Agreement to which exception has been taken, .or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

RFP-2023-BDAS-02-FACIL^1 "

JSl Research & Tialnlng institute. Inc.
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New.Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Complete one budget form for each budget period.

JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc.

Budget Request for:

Budget Period

Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable)

SAPFO

July 1. 2022 through Jurje 30. 2023 (SFY23) ft'

1.78%

I''

Line Item
Program Cost -
Funded by DHHS

Program Cost-
"Contractor Share/

Match

TOTAL Program
Cost

1. Salary & Wages ■ '
$100,054 $100,054

2. Fringe Benefits..
S46.923 so $46,923

3. Consultants
.  $0 $0 $0

A.. Eauioment SO SO $0

fi RiinnliftS - Educational $0 $0 -  $0

5 fb) Ritpplies - Lab $0 so $0

A fr) .Ri lohliAA - Pharmacy $0 $0 $0

p (H) Riipplifts - Medina! SO $0 so

5.(t) SuoDlies Office SO $0 $0

6. Travel
S27S -  so S275

7. Software
$0

t

so so

8 la)Other-Markelina/Communications . $0 so $0

8 lb) Olher - Education and Training SO ■  so •so

8 Ic) Olher - Olher Isoecifv below) *■

'TA and Treinlna Providers S42.470 so $42,470
SO so so

SO $0 $0

♦
so

Q RiibredDienl Contracts ■  $2,070,000 $0 .  :S2070.000

Total Direct Costs S2.259722 so 52.259,722

Total Indirect Costs $40,278 $0 S40.278

TOTAL $2,300,000 $0 $2,300,000

EXHIBIT C-l
RFP-2023-8pAS'p2-FACIL^1
JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc.

Contractor Initials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS, .

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Oojg-Pfee.Workplace Aclof-1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C.,701 et seq.). and further agrees lo have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 .of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES-CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification Is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 elseq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and pub'ished'as Part II of the May 25, l996 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors). prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free worttplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grahtees and sub-contractors) lhal'is_a Stale
may elect to make pne certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set oul below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed v/hen the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or govemmenl wide suspension or debarment_. Contractors using this form should
send it lo: •

Commissioner ,. !? '
NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street, ' • '•
Concord. NH 03301-6505 ■ '

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free Nworkplace by:
1.1. • Publishing a sla'lemeni notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution.

dispensing, possession or iise of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's -
workplace and specifying jhe actions .that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inforni employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse inlhe'workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; ^
12.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitalion, and-.employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposeP upon employees for drug abuse violations

occuiTing in the workplace;
,,r, i.3. Making it a requirement-thai each employee lo be engaged in the performance of the grant be

giveh a copy of the statement requlred by'paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of.the stalemenl; and
1.4.2, Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a vjolation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;"

1.5. Notifying the agency in wfllih"g. within ten calendar days" after receiving notice under
sub'paragraph 1.4,2 frorri an employee or oiherwise receiving actual"notice of such conviction.'
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, Including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant aclivity the convicted employee was working, unless the FederaJ^agency

Exhibit O-Cenificjlionfeflardiftg Drug Ff««
Wortcplaca R«quiremenis 7/13/2022
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has desighaied a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

•  -'1:6. • • Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2. v/ilh respect to any employee who is'so convicted __ ^
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such erhployee (6 participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabililatioh program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free .v^irkplace through
implemeritation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2. 1.3,1.4, 1.5. and 1,6.

2. The graritee may insert in the space provided below the sitefs) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant. -i

Place of Performance.fslfcet address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

'• ' Vendor Name: 3SI Research 4 Training. Institute. Inc.
;

7/1V2022 I EaUa*:
;  Nim^VaWhne Robert "r-

Title. Director

Exhibii D - Ccrtiricalioft iegarrJing Drug Free 'Vflndot Iniltah
Wo4(pU€e Requiremenls 7/13/2022
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified In Section-1'.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Secllon 319 ol Public Law 101-121. Governmehl wide Guidance for New Restriclions on Lobbying, arid
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certificalipn; ( ^

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPAFtTMENT OF AGRICULTURE- CONTRACTORS

Programs (IrvJIcate epplicable program covered);
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under TiUe XX ^
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX

• *Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Tllle IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that; ' ,

1  No Federal appropriate funds have-been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for Influencing or attempting to influence "an officer or employee of any agency, a Member v.-
of Congress an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention •
sub-grantee or sub-coritractor).

2  If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds'have been paid or will be paid to 'any person for..
' .influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, ^

•  an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection wllh this
Federal contract grant, loan, or cooperatlve.agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub- .
contractor) the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL. (Disclosure Form to -
Report Lobby'f^g. accordance with.its instructions, attached and Identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.)

3  The undersigned shall require thai the language, of this certification be included in the award
document for.sub-awards at all tiers (including subconlracts. sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) arid that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material.representation of fact upon wtiich reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification Is a prerequisite for making or e.nlenng into this
.iransaclion imposed by Section 1352, Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the requimd
certification shall be sut^ect to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than SIOD.OOO for
each such failure.

Vendor Name: 3S3 Research i Training Institute, inc.

7/13/2022

Vt:

Director

5^1^ Robert

r""

EKhlbii E - CcnKicjiion Regardifig LoDbying V«nbof Iniiiab.
7/13/2022
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS .

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply With the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45CFR Part 76 regarding Detjarment.
Suspensioh. and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Conlracior'.s
representative, as identified in Sections l.il and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

instructions FOR CERTIFICATION ■ .
1. . By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providlng'the,

certification Ml out t>e)ow.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participarti shall submit an
explanation of why it canr>ot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in cor^nection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (OHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certiftcation or an exptariation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this.transaction. .

3. The certification in this clause Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed-
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later dele'imlned that the prospective
prirhary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous ceriificalion, in addition to other remedies
available to .the Federal Government, OHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.-

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal.(contract) is submitted if at any lime the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
'circumstances. '

5. The terms'covered transaction,"'debarred.'*suspended,"lneligible,''lower tier covered
transaction,' 'participant,' "person,' 'primary covered transaction,' 'principal.* 'proposal,' and
"voluntarily excluded.* as used in.this clause, have the meanings set cut in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules irnplementing Executive Order 12549:45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached dennitibns.

The prospeclive'primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the.
proposed covered transaction be ehtered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

the prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will Include the
clause tilled 'Certifi.catiori Regarding Debarment, Susperision, Ineligit5ility and Voluntary Exclusion --
LowerTier Covered.Transactions.* provided by DHHS. without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and In all solicitations for.lower tier covered transactions.

A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a,
lower tier covered Iransaciion'thal it is not debarred, .suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it krwws thai the certification is erroneous. A participaril may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of Its principals. Each

'  participant may, but is not required to, check the'Nonprbcuremeni List (o1 excluded parties).

'9. Nothing contained in the foregoing.shall be construed to require establishment of a sysleni of records
in order to rendef-iri good faith the certification required by this clause. The knosvledge andl^ '

6.

7.

6.

CUVHHS/itOTi)
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Intormalipn of a partidpanl Is not required lo exceed that which Is normally possessed by a prudent
person In' the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized ur}der paragraph 6 of these instructions.- if a participant In a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower Uer covered transaction witfi a person who is
suspended, debarred. Ineligible, or voluntarily exduded fronn participation in this trarisaclion. in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government. OHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best oflls knowledge and belief, that it and Its

principals: .
11.1. ere not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarrnerit declared ineligibie. or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency:
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding "this proposal (contract) been conrricted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them tor corhniisslon of fraud or a!cr!mlnal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (F^eral. State or local)
tranMCtion or a contract under e public trarjsactlon; violation of Federal or Stale antitrust
statutes or cornmisslon of ernbealement.- theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or rccfiMng stolen property;

11.3. are not presently Indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
.(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1Kb)
of this certification; and -

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal. State or local) terminated for cause or default .

12. Where the prospective ̂ Imary participant is unable lo certify lo any of the statements In this
certificayon. such prospective participant shall attach art'explariation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submittir^g this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined In ̂ J5 CFR Part 76. certifies^to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarmenL declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded frotn participaUon in this tranMClion by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lovyer tier participant is unatyle to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will"
include this clause entitled,'Certificalion Regard^ing Debanmehl. Suspension. Ineligibility. and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tler Covered Transactions.'^without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in airsolicilations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: )SI Research. 4 Training' institute, inc

7/13/2022

Date ■ Robert
Title: ^ .

Director

ExNbli F •>C«>tff(caUon RegsrOinp Ocbamient. Suspension Conirsdor Intlats

(— -

'And Other ResponslblSlyMilteb 7/13/2022
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CgftTIFlCATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FgPERAl. NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH^BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
— ^ ^ whistleblower protections

The Contractor identified m Section 1:3 of the General Prpvisions agrees by signature of the ConUacto'r's
representative asidentified'in Sections l.il .and l.l2o1 the GeneraJ Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscriminalion requirement8^^which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Cbrilrbl and Safe Slreels Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under, this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefit, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act ,
requires'certain recipients to produce an Equal Empidymenl Opportunity Plan;
- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which" adopts by
reference, the civl) rights obligations of the'Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either iri employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements; \

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origm'in any program or activity):

the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C'. Section 794). which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

. the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34). which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and.local

■ government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;
-the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681.1683. 1685^86). which prohibits c.
discrimination on the basis gf sex in federally assisted education programs;

. the Age Dlscrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07). ̂ ich prohibits discrimmalion on lhe
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

■ -28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations-OJJDP Grant Programs): 28 C.F.R. pl.^2
(U S Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimlnation; Equal Emplpyrnent Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for failh-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559. which provide fundamental princigles'and policy-making
criteria for.partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations-Equal Treatmenlfdr Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 4TU.S.C.. §4712 and The Naiionat Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 1 i 2-239. enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Ernplpyce WhisUeblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with fe'deral grants and contracts.

The certificate set out belowls a-materiai representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certificalton or violation of the.certificalion shall be grounds for

, suspension of payment^ sus^nsion or termination of grants; or government wide susperislon or ^
debarment.

'  ExhIbUG
^  Contrador.lnHlab

CwtncSien d ContXf** -Wi p*a*Wn9 » FidirU NondiwirifWiorx EvuU Ttuintn d Fiiihhei«d Oro«4M«5eni
7/13/2022
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In the event a Federal of State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of r«e. color, religion, national 0;i9'^
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the findirig to the Office for Civil Rights to
the appficable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Prowslpns agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections MTand l.12ol the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

■  1. By signing and submitting this propoMi (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply wth the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name: 3SI Research & Training Institute., Inc.

• D*cvtlvfiH ̂ '

7/13/2022

Title:

-J'.

Date ■ WrneTVallfeF-ine Robert
Oireccor

Exhibil G , • .
Coniraclor Inlwb

7/13/2022
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law l03.227. Parl C - Environmental' Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking no_l.be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularty for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 10. if the services are funded by. Federal programs either.
directly or through Slate or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
fVledicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatienl drug or alcohol treatmenl. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penally of up to
S1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the respcnsibie entity.

The Coniraclor identiried in Section 1.3 of the GeneralProvisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
represenlaUve as Identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisjons. icexecule.the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this conuact. the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with alt applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227. Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

7/13/2022

Date

Contractor Name; 3SI Research & Ir'aining institute. Inc,

WmT'l^a'^'hVhne Robert T" .
Title: Di rector-

.ClVDHKS/ltOTI}

EzhitMt H - Certircation Regirding
Envlfonmenial Tobaew Snioiie

•Page 1 of 1

Coniractoi Initials 2
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7/13/2022
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABIUTY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Conlractoridentified in Seclion i .3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
-with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health.lnformation, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that

^ receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreerhent and "Covered
Entity' shall mean the Stale of New Hampshire. Departmeni.of Health and Human Services.

f;

(1) Definitions.

.a. "Breach".shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in sectlon'164.402 of Title 45.
'Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate' has the meaning given such term in seclion 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entity' has^the meaning given such term in section .160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

. d. "Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set'
.ln45,CFR Seclton 164.501.

e. "Data Aggregation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation' in 45 CFR
Section 164.501. ..

I  -Heallh Care Operations' shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations'
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Ad" means the Health rnformation Technology for Economic and .Clinical Health
Act. TitleXlll. Subtitle D, Part 1 .& 2 of the American Recovery arid Reinvestment Act of .....
2009. .

h. "HIPAA" mearis'the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually identifiable Health

■  lnformation..45-CFR Parts 160. 162 and 164 and amendments-therelo:
(

i. 'Individual' shall have the sarrie meaning as the temi "iridividuar in"45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance'with 45
CFR Section lW.50l'(g)!

i  'Privacy Rule' shaii' mean the Standards for Privacy of tndividually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164. prprnajgated under HIPAA by the United Stales -
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Projected Health Ififormation' shall have the same rheaning as thelerm "profected health
Information" In 45 CFR Seclion'160.103. limited to the.information created o/ receivM^;
"Business Associate.from or on behalf of Covered Entity. v ^

3^0,4 ExhIbiH ■ Cen{f«aor
'HeaJih lnsufinC4 Pofttbility A« , • ,
BujInMS Assodote Agreement 7/13/2022
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1. 'Required bv law' shall have the sanhe meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103. ,
\  .

m. 'Secretary" stiall rnean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her de'signee.

n. "Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Proleclion of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164. Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

o. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information' means protected health Information that Is not
secured by a technology standard that .renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is d'eveloped^or endorsed by,
a standards developihg organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Defiriitions.- Ad terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R.. Parts 160. 162 and 164. as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH.

Act. '

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Informatiori.

a. ' Business Associate shall not use. disclose, rhaintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further. Business Associate, including but not timited 'td all
its' directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use.-disclose, rhaintain or transmit'
PHI in any manner thafwould cdnstitule a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.-

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and adminislrallon of the Business Associate:
II. . • As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered '

Entity.

,c. Td'the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreerheht to disclose PHI to a
third party,' Business Associate must obtain, prior .to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party thai such PHI will be held confidentially and
-used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) ar» agreement from such third parly to notify. Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Noiificalion
[Rules of any breaches- of the confidentiality 'df the PHI. to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach. ' .

d. The'Business Associate shall not. unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreemenl. disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis lhaill is required by law. without first notifying *
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclos^^nd
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Erility objects to such disclosure, the Bus^

V2014 Exhibit I Conlrsctof InltUls
Health Injuranc# PoitabilUy Act
Buaineas Aaaodale Agreemenl 7./13/2022-
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies Ihe 'Business Associate that Covered,Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI'pursuani to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bour>d by such addiliorial reslrictiohs and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards. ;

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health informatipn and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health Information of the Covered Entity.

b.: The Business Associate shall irnmedialely. perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situatloris. The risk assessment shalllnciude. but not be
limited lo;

o The nature and extent of (he protected health information Involved, including the
types of identifiers and the IJkelihood of re-idehtirication;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or lo.whpm the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
o The extent lowhich the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.
I

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
•' breach and imrriedialely report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the

Covered Entity.

c.. The Buslness.Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
.Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its Internal policies and procedures, books
?and records relalir>g to the use and disdosure of PHI received frorti, or created or
.received by the Business.Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of delermining'Govered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
tSecurityRule.

e. Business Associate shall require all ofits business associates that receive, use or have
,  acces5;to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same

restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI containe_d herein, including
the duty to relurn or destroy the PHI as provided.under Section 3 (I).* The Covered Entity

■  'shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business ̂ fifiate
agreements with ConU-actor's intended business associates, who will be receiviha^l

V2014 ExWblll Conlradw InHats^"'
He«nh 1<uu/artce Portability Act

AMocialcAcroomorrl 7/13/2022
Page 3 of 6
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and inderiinificalion from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard" Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
, protected health Information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Er^lity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

■g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the '
requirements.under 45 CFR Section 1S4.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set.- the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to .Covered Entity for
arnendment and incorporate any such arncndment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill Its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate.shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. • Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entiiy for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Enitty such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI .In accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

K  In the'event any 'individual requests access to. amendment of. or accounting of PHI
'  directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)

business days forward such request to Covered Entiiy. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of resporiding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entiiy would cause Co.yered Entity or the Business •
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and'Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the'individuars request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as praclicable.

I. Within-ten (10) business days'of termination of the Agreerhent. for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PH|, ■
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is nol feasible; or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue' to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to thMeo*
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible. for so long as Business

■ ■ Eichb'A I Conirector .Initials3/2014
HQaRMnsuranee Potability Act
Butinoss Assodale Agreement 7/13/2022
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Assodate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its.sole discretion, requires that the
• Business Associate destroy any or all PHI. the" Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

i'

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity.

a;..; Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in Its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
1.64.520, to the" extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in..or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
dis'clbsed by Business,Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.508 or 45 CFR Seclionl64.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522;
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI. ,

{5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P.-37) of this.
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered '
Efitity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either imrnediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged-breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that r^either te/mlnation nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary. nv

<6) fyiisceilaneous ♦
T

a. Definitions and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,.
• shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
> from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I ,• to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as Is
necessary to amend the Agreemenl.'from time to lime as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply vyith the changes in the requiremeiits of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.-

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknovrledges that it has no ownership rights
vrith respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree thai any ambiguity In the Agreement-shall be rjeectve
to permit Covered EntityTo^cornpty wilh'HIPAA, the Pnvacy,,and Security Rule..

3/2014 v.*. .ExhblM . ConWBdO'Wiiih,
HeaHh liwutanea.Fortabilil)! Acl
Bustnesa Aasodale Agreerrianl 7/13/202 2
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Segreqation. If any term or condilipn of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held Invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terrhs or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition, to this end the
terrns arid conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

■'Survival. Provisions In this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreernent in section (3)1. the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination orthe Agreement. .

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duty executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Hurnan Services 3Si Research & Trainir^g institute, inc.
Conlraclor

Signature of Authorized Representative Signature of Authorized Representative

xa'tja S. Fox Katherine Robert

Nartie of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Represenlative,
Director

-Director

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

7/14/2022 7/iy2022 ■■

pate

f V • ♦

Date ^

3/2014 Exhbit I
KeaBh lnjwf«nce PoruMiiy Acl
BusineM'Auodate Agrdement
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CERTinCATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILfTY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT tFFATA) COMPUANCE

The Federal Funding Accouhlability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants ̂ ual to orgrealer than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1.2010. to repprt on
data rielated to executive compensation and associated firsl-tier'sub-grants of $25,000 or more, if the
initial award Is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modlTicatlons result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is sutiiect to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance vwth 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensatioh information), the
Department of Health ̂ d Hurhan Ser^cas (DHHS) rnust report the following InformaUon for any
subaward or contract sward subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award
3. Funding agency "
A. NAICS code for contracts/CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
e. Award tide descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (UEI0) -
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:''

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those , .
revenues are greater than $2SM annually and

10.2. Compensation InformaUon Is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA/equlred data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment Is made. . .
The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to compjy with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accour>tability and Transparency Act. Public Law 10^282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2*CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representaliye, as identified in Sections .1.11 arid 1,12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certificatiori:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed Information as ouUined above to the NH
Departmeril of Health and Hunrian Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
FInanciai Accountability and Transparency Act

ContractorName: 3Sl.Rescarch & Training institute. lr>c.

7/i3/2d22 , EiUAjr
'Biii ^ Robert

)

•TiUe: Director

EieilbftJ-CarincaUohRogarClns the PotJeral Funding CoriUector tnUab
AccajnUbiltyAndTreMp»rBncyAd{FFATA).Compftanco 7/13/2022
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FORMA

' As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the GenerahProvlsions. I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

LkTNULLR6FL6
1. The UEI (SAM.gov) number for your entity Is:

2. in your business or.organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization

receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,

loans, grants,- sub-grants.-anO/or cooperative.agrecments: and <2} $2S,000,000 or more in annual

gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, ar^^or

•cooperative agreements?

NO -YES

If (he answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to above is YES, please, answer the following:
r

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your

business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a} or 15(d) of the Securities

Excl^nge Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the internal Revenue Code of

1986?

NO * X yes
if the answer to #3 atiove isYES, slop here

if the answer to #3,above is NO, please answer the following;-

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as foilqws:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:.

Amount:-.

Amount:.

Amount:-.

Amount:

cucms/no?!)

J - C«ninc«tlon R«ganjlng tho Fodtral Funding
Accountablfily And Trantparency Act (FFATA) CompSanco
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The followihg terms may be reflected and have the-descrlbed meaning in this document:

1. "Breach' means, the loss of control, compxomlse. unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term refe,rf[ng to
situations where persons other than authorized' users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to, personally Identifiable
information., whether, physicar or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information." Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" .In section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. 'Computer Security Incident' shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2)'of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "ConfidenUal Data' means all confidential information
-'disclosed by one party to the 'other such, as all medical, health', financial, public
.assistance benefits and personal Information Including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records; Case Records. Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information. ... ,

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned of managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
-Human Services' (DHHS) or accessed in the course ,of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure,.protection', and'disposition is governed- by
stale or federal law-or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to,
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Informa'tion (PI). Personal' Financial
Information (PF|). Federal Tax Information'(FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN).
Payment Card.lnduslry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.'

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, conlractor's ernployee,-
business "associate.- subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance .vyilh the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIpAA" rnearis the Health Irisurance Pprlablllty and Accountability Act of 1996 an^ttve
regulations promulgated ttiercund'er.

6. "Incident" rneans an^act.that pptentialiy violates an-explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed, or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or Its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
.a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes \o system hardware.
firmware, or .software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, .instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or ejecUonic
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.mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

.7. "Open Wireless Network' means any .network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Inforrnation
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
rSetwork and not adequately secure for the transmission of unericrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. 'Personal Information" (or "PI") means Information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an Individual's Identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biom'elriC' records, etc..
alone,'or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific Individual', such as date and place of birth, rholher's maiden

■' narne. etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shail.mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. 'Protected Health Information" (or 'PHI') has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "[Protected Health Information* in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected; Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendrnents
thereto. "

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information.that is
not secured by a'technology standard that .renders Protected Health' Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable - to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

.RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE.CONTRACTOR

K Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain" or transmit Confidential Information
excep'l as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
includir}9 but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and-agents, must not
use. disclose, maintain or transmit.PHI In any manner-that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.-

2. The Contractor must not disclose .any Confidential Information in response to a
—OJ ■
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request for disclosure oh the basis that it is required by law. In response to a
subpoena, etc.. without first notifying DHHS so that OHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS' has agreed to be tx>und. by additional
restrictions over-and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional

festrictions and must abide by ariy additional security safeguards.

4. The Cdnlractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtajned under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract,

6: The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the .authorized representatives
of .DHHS for the purpose'of inspecting to confirm compliance .with the terms of this.^
Contract. * i ^

METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User. is transmitting DHHS "data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an - expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet. .

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data-if
email is encrvpted and being sent to and being received .by email addresses of
persons authorized'lo receive such information. • ' , . .

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is' employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers-(SSL) must be used and the web site rnust be
secure. SSL encrypls data transmitted via a Web site.

f-'- '- - ■ -

.5. Fjie Hosting Services, also known as Tile Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to -transmit
Cor)fidential Data. ^

6. Ground.Mail Service. End User may onl/transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and' PDA. If End User Is enr^pioying portable devices to transmit
Confidehtial Data'sald devices rhust be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open -
-1 " . i--:

■—o»

V5. Le»tupd»te 10/09/18 ' Exhibit K ' Ccnifactoi lnHlal»^ '
DHHS InlomaOon

Security Requirefnenii .7/13/2022'
Page 3 of 9 Oalie



DocuSign Envelope ID: F2529697-09B5-42B5.9CF1-9259F39ABE73

DocuSlgn Envelope 10; O388FC8A-A04B-470S-9BF^AF971OC34B9B

OoouSign EfweJope tD: E4FJW9A-2E8»^9#A^79M2497e4A9F23

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

wireless network. End User musfemploy a virtual . private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which Information will be
transmitted or accessed. ^

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol .(SFTP). also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End " User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End .User will
structure'the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of

•>; information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidenlial Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24

-  hours). • . •

1. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential 6ala via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of informalion.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The-Coritractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration.of this
Cpnlract. After such time, the-Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative In wtiatever forrn It may exist, unless, olhenvise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end. the parties must;

A. Retention

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

the Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected In
connection with the services rendered urider this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical.iocation requirement .shall also apply ,in ihe-implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

The Contractor agrees to ensure proper, security monitoring capabilities are In
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential Informaliori for contractor provided systems.

The "Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and. education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential informallpn.

The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified In section IV..A.2

The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
Fedf^MP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable, statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security., All sen/ers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anli-spyware. and antl-malware utilities, The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intfusipn-detectidn' and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerabiiily of the hosting
infrastructure.

y,.

B, Disposition
S

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or.its^
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for'
securely disposing of spch data upon,request or contract termination; and will
obtain written cerlificalion for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no lorjger in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance writh industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization. or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example",
degaussirig) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev-1, .Guidelines
for Media' Sdnitliation. National Institute of Standards and Technology. U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at ■
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certlficalion.to the Department
upon r^uesl! Jhe written certification will Include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable.

•  r^ulatory and professional 'slahdards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the Stale and Conlraclqr prior to destruction..

2. Unless otherwise specified, writhin thirty (30) days of the termination of this
'Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
^cure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty '(30) dsys of the terminatiori of this
■ Contract. Contractor agrees to corhplelely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping. •

IV. PRIOCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the'DHHS Data-received under this Contract, and,any .
derivative data or files, as follows: '

1. "The Contractor will .maintain proper security controls to protect Oepariment
confidential Information collected, processed; managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services. j.

The Contractor will .maintain pqiicies and procedures to protect\Depar1ment
confidential Information throughout the information iifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformatloh. use. .storage and" secure destruction) .regardless "of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape. disk, paper, etc.). r-o#
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3. The Contractor will maintain • appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systerhs that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

A. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect polehllal security events that can impact Stale of NH systems and/or
Department confidentiai information for contractor provided systems.

.5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. -If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the' engagement
supporting the services-for Stale of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines. specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

'7. The Contractor, will work .with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire'and Department system access, and authorization policies

•• and procedures, .systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be.
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sul>-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor Is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement. "*

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at Ifs request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey Is. to enable the Department and •
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats; and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Ccritraclor, or the Department may.- request the, survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractpr'will not"store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United Stales unless
prior express written consent is 'Obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor .shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss res'tilting from the breach.
The Stale shall recover from the Contracipr all. costs of response and recovery from

0»
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the^
privacy and security-of Confidential Information, and .must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a:level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS-
Privacy Act .Regulations (45 C.F.R. ,§5b). -HIPAA Privacy arid Security Rules (45 .
C.F.R. Paris'160 .and-164) that govern protections .for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

*  1

13.'Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate.adminlstrallve, technical, and
physical safeguards, to protect the confidentiaii^ of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the Stale of New Hampshire. Deparimenl of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.g0v/doiVvendor/index:htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards./and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor .vwli notify the State's Privacy Officer and (he
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This-includes-a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes ariy Slate -of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire nelwprk;

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract 'to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End. Users:

a. cornply with such safeguards as referenced In Section IV A. above.
Impierhented to protect Confidential Information that .is furnished by DHHS
urider this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard .this information at all times.
c. ;ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media conlaining PHI, PI. or

PFI are encrypted and password-protected.
d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if ehcrypted and .being

sentMo and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such informalion.
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6. limit disclosure of the Confidenlial Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiatile data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an" area that is
jjhysically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
durir>g duty hours as well as norvduty hours (e.g.. door, locks, card keys,
biometric idehllfiefs, etc.).

•g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data,' including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable Information, and in all cases,

-  such data must be encrypted at all times when In transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required In section IV above.

K in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate saf^eguards, as determined by a riskrbased
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must hot be
shared with, anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure..
This applies to credentials used to .access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor Is responsible -for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conducl onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein. HIRAA. -
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract. *■'

V. UOSS.REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

■  -The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Ihcidenl Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. fn addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:
1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally iderilifiable information Is Involved In Incidents;
3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;
4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents

and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether 'Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach, notification methods, timing, source, and contents from amorig different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

.V Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance svith NH RSA 359-C;20.

VI, PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrlvacypfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

8. DHHS Security Officer:

OHHSInfprm3tionSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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